
 

 

 
 

  

   
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

STUDY SESSION 4:00 p.m. 
 

Please turn off cell phones and pagers, as a courtesy to those in attendance.   Thank you. 
 

 

1. Public Comment 
 

If you wish to comment on an item which is not on the agenda, you may do so under “Public 
Comment.”  In order to allow time for all public comments, each individual’s comments are limited to 
five minutes.  When addressing the Council, you are requested to come forward to the speaker's 
microphone, state your name and address, and then proceed with your presentation. 
 

2. Closed Session Public Comment 
 

If you wish to comment on an item which is to be considered during Closed Session, you are invited to 
do so at this time. In order to allow time for all public comments, each individual’s comments are 
limited to five minutes.  When addressing the Council, you are requested to come forward to the 
speaker's microphone, state your name and address, and then proceed with your presentation. 
 

3. Adjourn to City Council Closed Session 
 Conference with Legal Counsel, Potential Litigation, Significant Exposure to Litigation  

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
Cases:  Two 

 Disposition of Real Property, Government Code Section 54956.8 
Property:  APN 024-051-031 
Negotiating Parties:  City of Lemoore and ImMODO California 1 LLC 

 Conference with Real Property Negotiators, Government Code Section 54956.8 
Property:  APN 023-120-001, 023-120-005, and 023-120-006 (Lemoore Golf Course) 
Negotiating Parties:  Acting City Manager Laws and City Attorney Avedisian/Tachi Yokut Tribe                                   

4. Adjourn – National Night Out 
 

 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL – 7:30 p.m. 

 

Please turn off cell phones and pagers, as a courtesy to those in attendance.   Thank you. 
 

 

1. Call to Order:       A. Pledge of Allegiance          B.  Invocation 
 

2. Public Comment 
 

If you wish to comment on an item which is not on the agenda, you may do so under “Public 
Comment.”  In order to allow time for all public comments, each individual’s comments are limited to 
five minutes.  When addressing the Council, you are requested to come forward to the speaker’s 
microphone, state your name and address, and then proceed with your presentation. 
 
 
 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

LEMOORE CITY COUNCIL 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

429 “C” STREET 
August 6, 2013 



 

 

Items for Council Consideration and Action 
 

3. Consent Calendar 

All items listed under Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one 
motion.  For discussion of any Consent Item, it will be made a part of the Regular Agenda at the 
request of any member of the City Council or any person in the audience.  

A. Approval – Minutes – Regular Meeting – July 16, 2013 
B. Approval – Warrant Register 12-13 – August 2, 2013 
C. Approval – Warrant Register 13-14 – August 2, 2013 
D. Approval – Budget Adjustment – Fire Department – Purchase Port-a-Cool 
E. Approval – Budget Adjustment – Electricity – Downtown Event Lighting 
F. Approval – Quarterly Investment Report – Quarter Ending June 3, 2013 
G. Approval – Notice of Completion – Tract 872 – Phase 1 
H. Approval – Subdivision Agreement – Final Map – Tract 872 – Phases 2 & 3 
I. Approval – Notice of Completion – CMC Office – Phase 1 – Insulation Project – Broken 

Drum Insulation, Visalia 
J. Approval – Notice of Completion – CMC Office – Phase 1 – Drywall, Tape and Texture 

Project – Duff and Reed Construction 
K. Approval – Notice of Completion – 2012-2013 Double Chip Seal / Cape Seal 

Conversion Project – International Slurry Seal (VSS) 
L. Approval – Notice of Completion – 19th Avenue Construction-Reconstruction of Sewer 

and Water Facilities – West Valley Construction 
M. Approval – Letter of Support – Expansion – Waste Management – Kettleman Hills 

Facility 

4. Continued Public Hearing – Declaring Public Nuisances – Ordering Weed Abatement  

5. Report and Recommendation – First Reading – Ordinance 2013-03 – Local Bidding Preference 

6. Report and Recommendation – Request to Modify Impact Fee Designation – Montrio Capital 
Partners – Multi-Family Development 

7. Report and Recommendation – Golf Course Debt Financing 

8. Report and Recommendation – Installation of Concealed Carry Signs 

9. Appointment – Downtown Merchants Advisory Committee 

10. Approval – Warrant Register 12-13 – Successor Agency Pursuant to Enforceable Obligation 
Payment Schedule  

11. Report and Recommendation – Subordination Agreement – Gary V. Burrows Inc. – 1600 
Enterprise Drive, Lemoore – Successor Agency Pursuant to Enforceable Obligation Payment 
Schedule 

12. Department/City Manager Reports  

13. Council Reports and Requests for Information 

14. Adjourn to Meeting of the Lemoore Housing Authority 

15. Approval – Minutes – Lemoore Housing Authority – July 2, 2013 

16. Report and Recommendation – 2013-2014 Budget 

17. Closed Session Public Comment 
 

If you wish to comment on an item which is to be considered during Closed Session, you are invited to 
do so at this time. In order to allow time for all public comments, each individual’s comments are 
limited to five minutes.  When addressing the Council, you are requested to come forward to the 
speaker's microphone, state your name and address, and then proceed with your presentation. 
 
 
 

 



 

 

 
 

18. Adjourn to City Council Closed Session 
 Conference with Legal Counsel, Potential Litigation, Significant Exposure to Litigation  

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
Cases:  Two 

 Disposition of Real Property, Government Code Section 54956.8 
Property:  APN 024-051-031 
Negotiating Parties:  City of Lemoore and ImMODO California 1 LLC 

 Conference with Real Property Negotiators, Government Code Section 54956.8 
Property:  APN 023-120-001, 023-120-005, and 023-120-006 (Lemoore Golf Course) 
Negotiating Parties:  Acting City Manager Laws and City Attorney Avedisian/Tachi Yokut Tribe 

19. Adjournment 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
TENTATIVE FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

 

 
 
Special Meeting - August 8th   
City Manager Interviews 
 
 
August 20th 
Study Session – Discussion – Draft ADA Transition Plan 
Study Session – Discussion – Telecasting/Webcasting Council Meetings 
Study Session – Discussion – Police Department Dispatch 
Report and Recommendation – Impact Fees – Master User Fees 
Report and Recommendation – Long Range Property Management Plan  
Report and Recommendation – Determine Position – Resolutions 1 and 2 – League of California Cities Annual Conference 

 
 
 
Notice of ADA Compliance:  If you or anyone in your party needs reasonable accommodation to 
attend, or participate in, any City Council Meeting, please make arrangements by contacting the 
Human Resources Office at City Hall 24 hours prior to the meeting.  They can be reached by calling 
924-6700, or by mail at 119 Fox Street, Lemoore, California 93245. 
 

Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
agenda will be made available for public inspection at the City Clerk’s Counter at City Hall located at 
119 Fox Street, Lemoore, CA during normal business hours.  In addition, most documents will be 
posted on the City’s website at www.lemoore.com. 
 
 

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING 
 

  I, Kristie R. Baley, City Clerk of the City of Lemoore, do hereby declare that the foregoing agenda for 
the Lemoore City Council regular meeting of Tuesday, August 6, 2013 was posted on the outside 
bulletin board located at City Hall, 119 Fox Street in accordance with applicable legal requirements.  
Dated this 2nd day of August 2013. 

        //s//     
      Kristie R. Baley, City Clerk  



 1

Item _3A_ 
 
 

Minutes of the Study Session of the  
LEMOORE CITY COUNCIL 

July 16, 2013 
 
 

MEETING CALLED TO ORDER: 
At 5:30 p.m. the meeting was called to order. 

 
ATTENDANCE: 

Mayor Siegel; Mayor Pro Tem Wynne; Council Members Gordon, Neal, 
Rodarmel; Acting City Manager/Police Chief Laws; City Attorney Avedisian; 
Public Works/Planning Director Wlaschin; Parks and Recreation Director 
Simonson; Finance Director Silva; Administrative Analyst Apone; City Clerk 
Baley 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 

 There was no comment. 
 
DISCUSSION – LOCAL BIDDING PREFERENCE: 

Analyst Apone presented a summary of the City’s past bidding history to 
assist Council in determining which projects should be eligible to receive a 
local bidding preference and the best percentage to consider. 

 
Public Works/Planning Director Wlaschin and Parks and Recreation Director 
Simonson provided clarification during the discussion. 
 
Council directed staff consider their input and present the first reading of the 
Bidding Preference Ordinance at the next regular meeting. 

 
UPDATE – PLANNING SERVICES: 

Project Manager Holwell was unable to present the update due to her 
responsibilities at the Lemoore Tuesday Night Market. 

 
    Council expressed appreciation to Planning staff for their diligence. 
 

Acting City Manager Laws answered questions. 
 

Mayor Siegel recommended staff submit a Planning Update on a quarterly 
basis.  The next update is expected November 5, 2013. 

 
CLOSED SESSION PUBLIC COMMENT: 

Karen Osterland requested that during property negotiations Council put 
safeguards in place to protect the future of the Lemoore Municipal Golf Course 
and those who currently benefit from it.  
 
Mayor Siegel asked Ms. Osterland to submit a list of concerns from the 
community to assist Council in the negotiation process. 
 



 2

ADJOURN TO LEMOORE CITY COUNCIL CLOSED SESSION: 
At 6:19 p.m., the Council adjourned.  They did not meet in Closed Session.   

 
Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the  

LEMOORE CITY COUNCIL 
July 16, 2013 

 
MEETING CALLED TO ORDER: 
 At 7:30 p.m. the meeting was called to order. 
ATTENDANCE: 

Mayor Siegel; Mayor Pro Tem Wynne; Council Members Gordon, Neal, 
Rodarmel; Acting City Manager/Police Chief Laws; City Attorney Avedisian; 
Public Works/Planning Director Wlaschin; Parks and Recreation Director 
Simonson; Finance Director Silva; City Engineer Tow; City Clerk Baley 

  
PUBLIC COMMENT: 

Mayor Siegel invited the Lemoore Little League 13 Year Old All Stars to the 
podium and congratulated them for winning the previous weekend in 
Chowchilla.   
 
The team informed the public they earned a spot to play in the Western 
Regional Tournament in Irvine and could move on to play in the World Series 
held in Livermore, CA this year.  They also asked for donations to put toward 
travel expenses. 
 
Council Member Rodarmel donated one hundred dollars and Council Member 
Gordon asked teammates to stop by his office so that he could contribute. 
 
Chris Dickman voiced several concerns she had and on behalf of her 
neighbors who were unable to attend and received the answers she was 
seeking from Council Members and Acting City Manager Laws.  
 
Mike Montalbano provided clarification concerning possible misinterpretations 
of the newspaper article that may have caused Chris Dickman and her 
neighbors some concern. 
 
Jon Foote thanked Chowchilla for the great Little League Tournament they put 
on and expressed appreciation for the support the team received at the 
Lemoore Tuesday Night Market Place.   

 
Jeanne Burrows-Castadio stated she and husband Brian Castadio would 
donate money needed for the Lemoore Little League All Stars to travel to the 
tournament.  She also voiced her support for the Council and the job that they 
are doing.   
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 3

CONSENT CALENDAR: 
It was moved by Council Member Gordon, seconded by Council Member 
Rodarmel, and carried that the Council approve the following Consent 
Calendar 
A. Approval – Minutes – Regular Meeting – July 2, 2013 
B. Approval – Warrant Register 12-13 – July 12, 2013 
C. Approval – Warrant Register 13-14 – July 12, 2013 
D. Approval – Notice of Rejection – Marianne Lyons-Penton 
E. Approval – Bid Award – CNG Outdoor Maintenance Area 
F. Approval – Notice of Completion – 40 ‘G’ Street – North Water Tank 

Coating 
G. Approval – Resolution No. 2013-19 – Authorizing Application to the State of 

CA  for New Kings County Enterprise Zone Targeted Employment Area 
 
 Ayes:  Gordon, Rodarmel, Neal, Wynne, Siegel 

  
PUBLIC HEARING – RESOLUTION NO. 2013-20 – PFMD NO. 1 – ZONE 6 – ANNEXATION OF 
TERRITORIES – LEVY AND COLLECT ASSESSMENTS – FISCAL YEAR 2013-2014: 

City Clerk Baley requested that Mayor Siegel open the Public Hearing. 
 
Mayor Siegel opened the Public Hearing. 
 
There was no Comment. 
 
Mayor Siegel closed the Public Hearing. 
 
City Clerk Baley read the returned ballot in favor of the annexation and 
assessments and requested that Council approve, by motion, the annexation 
and assessments for fiscal year 2013-2014. 

 
It was moved by Council Member Wynne, seconded by Council Member  
Gordon, and carried to approve Resolution 2013-20 Ordering the Annexation 
and Inclusion of Additional Territories as Zone 6 in Public Facilities          
Maintenance District No. 1; and Confirming the Diagram and Assessment of 
Annual Levy for Fiscal Year 2013-2014 for the Additional Territories Annexed 
as Zone 6 of Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1.  In addition, the City 
Clerk was directed to file the Diagram of the PFMD including the Added       
Territories, and assessments therein, a Notice of Assessment with respect to 
the Added Territories, and an amended map of the boundaries of the PFMD,          
incorporating the Added Territories as required by Sections 3110, 3113 and 
3114 of the Streets & Highways Codes, with the Kings County Recorder. 
 
Ayes:  Wynne, Gordon, Neal, Rodarmel, Siegel 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 4

PUBLIC HEARING – RESOLUTION NO. 2013-21 – PFMD NO. 1 – ZONES 1, 2, 3, 4, AND 5 – 
LEVY AND COLLECT ASSESSMENTS – FISCAL YEAR 2013-2014: 

City Clerk Baley requested that Mayor Siegel open the Public Hearing. 
 
Mayor Siegel opened the Public Hearing. 
 
There was no comment. 
 
Mayor Siegel closed the Public Hearing. 
 
City Clerk Baley requested that Council approve, by motion, the assessments 
for fiscal year 2013-2014. 
 
It was moved by Council Member Gordon, seconded by Council Member  
Rodarmel, and carried to adopt Resolution 2013-21 Confirming the Diagram 
and Assessment of Annual Levy for Fiscal Year 2013-2014 for Public Facilities 
Maintenance District No. 1, Zones 1, 2, 3, 4, and 5. 
 
Ayes:  Gordon, Rodarmel, Neal, Wynne, Siegel 

 

PUBLIC HEARING – RESOLUTION NO. 2013-22 – LLMD NO. 1 – ZONES 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 8A, 
9, 10, 11, 12, 12A, AND 13 – LEVY AND COLLECT ASSESSMENTS – FISCAL YEAR 2013-
2014: 

City Clerk Baley requested that Mayor Siegel open the Public Hearing. 
 
Mayor Siegel opened the Public Hearing. 
 
There was no comment. 
 
Mayor Siegel closed the Public Hearing. 
 
City Clerk Baley requested that Council approve, by motion, the assessments 
for fiscal year 2013-2014. 

 
It was moved by Council Member Rodarmel, seconded by Council Member  
Wynne, and carried to adopt Resolution 2013-22, Confirming the Diagram and 
Assessment of Annual Levy for Fiscal Year 2013-2014 for Landscaping and 
Lighting Maintenance District No. 1, Zones 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 8A, 9, 10, 11, 12, 
12A & 13. 

 

Ayes:  Rodarmel, Wynne, Gordon, Neal, Siegel 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 5

PUBLIC HEARING – RESOLUTION NO. 2013-23 – URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 
2010: 

City Engineer Tow summarized the reason for the amendments to the 2010 
Urban Water Management Plan and answered questions.  He requested that 
Mayor Siegel open the Public Hearing. 
 
Mayor Siegel opened the Public Hearing. 
 
There was no comment. 
 
Mayor Siegel closed the Public Hearing. 
 
It was moved by Council Member Wynne, seconded by Council Member  
Gordon, and carried to adopt Resolution No. 2013-23 Adopting an Urban     
Water Management Plan. 
 
Ayes:  Wynne, Gordon, Neal, Rodarmel, Siegel 
 
It was moved by Council Member Rodarmel, seconded by Council Member 
Wynne, and carried to authorize the transfer of $19,000 from the Water Capital 
Fund to cover the cost of the update. 
 

Ayes:  Rodarmel, Wynne, Gordon, Neal, Siegel 

 

PUBLIC HEARING – RESOLUTION 2013-24 – DECLARING PUBLIC NUISANCES – ORDERING 
WEED ABATEMENT: 

City Clerk Baley presented the public nuisance properties to Council and 
requested that Council, by motion, adopt Resolution 2013-24.  Baley asked 
Mayor Siegel to open a Public Hearing and continue the Hearing until the 
August 6, 2013 Regular Meeting of the City Council. 
 
Mayor Siegel opened the Public Hearing. 
 
There was no comment.  

 
Mayor Siegel continued the Public Hearing until August 6, 2013. 
 
It was moved by Council Member Gordon, seconded by Council Member 
Wynne, and carried to adopt Resolution 2013-24 Declaring Public Nuisances 
and Ordering Weed Abatement. 
 
Ayes:  Gordon, Wynne, Neal, Rodarmel, Siegel 
 

REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION – APPOINTMENT – PLANNING COMMISSIONER: 
Mayor Siegel appointed Michael Dow to the Planning Commission with the 
concurrence of Council Members Gordon and Wynne. 
 

 
 
 



 6

APPROVAL – WARRANT REGISTER 12-13 – SUCCESSOR AGENCY PURSUANT TO 
ENFORCEABLE OBLIGATION PAYMENT SCHEDULE: 

It was moved by Council Member Rodarmel, seconded by Council Member 
Gordon, and carried to approve the Successor Agency Warrant Register      
12-13. 
 
Ayes:  Rodarmel, Gordon, Neal, Wynne, Siegel 

 
APPROVAL – WARRANT REGISTER 13-14 – SUCCESSOR AGENCY PURSUANT TO 
ENFORCEABLE OBLIGATION PAYMENT SCHEDULE: 

It was moved by Council Member Rodarmel, seconded by Council Member 
Wynne, and carried to approve the Successor Agency Warrant Register 13-14. 
 
Ayes:  Rodarmel, Wynne, Gordon, Neal, Siegel 

 
DEPARTMENT/CITY MANAGER REPORTS: 

Parks and Recreation Director Simonson invited Council to attend the 
retirement luncheon on August 2, 2013 for Larry Avila who has served as a 
City employee for 40 years. 
 
Acting City Manager Laws informed Council there would not be a 5:30 p.m. 
Study Session August 6, 2013 so that Council Members and staff could 
participate in the National Night Out event from 5:30 p.m. to 7:30 p.m. 
 
Acting City Manager Laws provided Council with an update on the City 
Manager Recruitment process and requested Council schedule a Special 
Meeting in early August to interview the four candidates remaining in Closed 
Session.  

 
COUNCIL REPORTS AND REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION: 

 Council Member Gordon requested staff consider using community service 
people to paint curbs and hydrants.  Chief Laws said he would discuss 
available options with the Kings County Probation Department. 
 
Council Member Neal requested an update on the CMC remodeling project 
and asked who is providing inspection services.  Parks and Recreation 
Director Simonson explained that the architect made errors in the blueprints 
and emissions.  Those errors had to be addressed, but the project is moving 
forward as scheduled.  He also explained the City Building Inspector provides 
services for the project just as he would any other project. 
 
Council Member Rodarmel asked Public Works Director to address street 
sweeper issues at 138 G Street.  He also asked that staff approach the 
residents at 315 W. Deodar immediately concerning the cement work in the 
front yard. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 7

 
Mayor Siegel attended the July Lemoore Volunteer Fire Department 
dinner/meeting and was asked to speak and answer questions.  Volunteers 
showed concern for the current dispatch issues and they requested that he 
approach the idea of having City Council meetings available on television or 
the web.  The Mayor requested that staff provide information concerning the 
status of the City building its own dispatch center which has been budgeted for 
in this fiscal year.  He also asked staff to present telecasting and webcasting 
information to Council for consideration. 

 
Mayor Siegel also requested that Public Works Director Wlaschin come to the 
podium to provide information concerning water consumption issues.    
 

ADJOURNMENT: 
 At 8:46 p.m. the meeting adjourned. 
 
Approved the 6th day of August, 2013. 
 
Full digital audio recording is available. 
 
 
              
        William M. Siegel, Jr., Mayor 
Attest: 
 
 
       
Kristie R. Baley, City Clerk 
 



kbaley
Typewritten Text

kbaley
Typewritten Text

kbaley
Typewritten Text
Item 3B





























































































kbaley
Typewritten Text

kbaley
Typewritten Text
Item 3C



















































































“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
William Siegel 

Mayor Pro Tem 
 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 

Lois Wynne 
Council Members 

John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
 

CALIFORNIA 
 

Fire  
Department 

 
119 Fox Street 

Lemoore  CA  93245 
Phone  (559) 924-6797 
FAX  (559) 924-9003 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM 3D 
To: Lemoore City Council 

From: John Gibson, Fire Chief 

Date: July 30, 2013 

Subject: Budget Adjustment – Purchase of Port-a-Cool Evaporative  
Fan for Fox Street Fire Station Maintenance Area 

 
Discussion: 
 

The maintenance area at the Fox Street Fire Station does not have any type of cooling 
system.  One full time employee uses the maintenance area every day to maintain and 
repair fire trucks and equipment, and complete building maintenance projects. 
 
The Fire Department has suggested in the past that a cooler is needed; however the 
heat wave we are experiencing has created a sense of urgency.  Two local businesses 
carry the Port-a-Cool 36” evaporative fan which would cool up to 2,500 sq. ft., however 
three quotes are provided below. 
 
Lemoore Auto Supply: $2,687.49 
Fastenal:    $2,835.34 
Grainger:    $3,315.00 plus tax and shipping 
 
Should Council approve the requested budget adjustment, a fan would be purchased 
immediately.  
 
Budget Impact: 
 

$2,700 would be moved from the General Fund to the Fire Department Budget. 
 
Recommendation: 
 

That Council approve, by motion, an increase to the Fire Department 2013-2014 Budget 
in the amount of $2,700 to purchase a portable evaporative fan for the maintenance 
area at the Fire Department. 
 



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
William Siegel 

Mayor Pro Tem 
 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 

Lois Wynne 
Council Members 

John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
 

CALIFORNIA 
 

Office of the 
City Manager 

 
119 Fox Street 

Lemoore  CA  93245 
Phone  (559) 924-6704 
FAX  (559) 924-9003 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM 3E 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Judy Holwell, Project Manager 

Date: July 31, 2013  

Subject: Budget Adjustment – Electricity - Downtown Event Lighting  

 
Discussion: 
 

There are two electrical panels in the Downtown area that provide power to certain 
electric outlets, twinkle lights in the trees, and Christmas decorations/lights.  For at least 
the past 13 years, the Lemoore Chamber of Commerce has been paying the PG&E bills 
for these two panels.  Recently, Chamber CEO, Maureen Azevedo, questioned why the 
Chamber was paying for the electricity when they were clearly a benefit to Downtown 
and should be paid by the City.  On July 25, 2013, Maureen informed the City (see 
attached email) that she had cancelled service with PG&E.  The two meters are now in 
the name of the City and Council is asked to approve a Budget Adjustment for the cost 
of the power estimated at $2,000 for the year. 
 

It is unclear when or why the Chamber began paying for the electricity.  I researched 
City records back to the year 2000, which showed that the Annual Budget for the 
Parking and Business Improvement Area (PBIA) account included a line item to 
reimburse the Chamber $80-$100 annually for electricity.  However, none of the funds 
were ever expended from this account.  After several years of this line item being 
included in the PBIA Budget, but not being spent, the line item was removed and no 
funds were budgeted.  This information was provided to Maureen during the April 10, 
2013, Downtown Merchants Advisory Committee Meeting and again during a Chamber 
Board Meeting. 
 

After further researching and asking several people about this subject, I was led to 
Cathy Martin, a former Chamber Executive Director.  She indicated that in an 
agreement with the City during her tenure in the 90’s, the Chamber agreed to ‘maintain 
the Christmas lights’.  However, she said the City did the actual maintaining of the lights 
while the Chamber paid the electricity for the months that the Christmas lights were on. 
 

Attached is a schedule provided by the Chamber showing the amount billed by PG&E 
for the two electric meters for calendar year 2012.  The amount for the two meters 
totaled $1,517 for the year.  The total for the two months that the Christmas lights were 
in use was $869 (December and January bills).  The cost for electricity Downtown is 
expected to increase slightly due to the addition of the weekly Lemoore Tuesday Night 
Market. 
 



“In God We Trust” 

Budget Impact: 
 

Increase the Maintenance Division budget (Account Number 4220-4340) by not more 
$2,000. 
 
Recommendation: 
 

It is recommended that Council approve a Budget Adjustment for the Maintenance 
Division for an amount not to exceed $2,000 to pay PG&E for the two electrical meters 
Downtown. 
 
 



















“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
William Siegel 

Mayor Pro Tem 
 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 

Lois Wynne 
Council Members 

John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
 

CALIFORNIA 
 

Finance Department 
 

119 Fox Street 
Lemoore  CA  93245 

Phone  (559) 924-6700 
FAX  (559) 924-9003 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM 3F 
To: Lemoore City Council 

From: Cheryl Silva, Finance Director 

Date: July 15, 2013 

Subject: Quarterly Investment Report 

 
Discussion: 
 

California Government Code and the City Investment Policy require that the City 
Council review and accept the Quarterly Investment Report. 
 
Budget Impact: 
 

None. 
 
Recommendation: 
 

That the City Council accept, by motion, the Quarterly Investment Report for the quarter 
ended June 30, 2013. 
 



Authorized Investments Type of Date of Rate of Quarterly Account Percent
Institution Investment Invest. Term Interest Earnings Balance Distributed

A. City/RDA Investments (City/RDA Control)
1 Bank of America Laguna Passbook 9/8/2000 open 0.05% 38$                     218,626$                   0.46%

XXXXXXXXXX5428 Pub. Agency Sav.
2 B of A Laguna/City of Lemoore C.D. (1) 9/8/2000 30 days 0.10% 72                       261,334                     0.56%

XXXXXXXXXX0101
3 Local Agency Investment Fund-City LAIF/St. of Calif. ---- open 0.25% 16,591                23,841,583                50.67%
4 Local Agency Investment Fund-RDA LAIF/St. of Calif. ---- open 0.25% 2                         2,320                         0.00%
5 Bank of America C.D. 5/6/1998 180 days 0.15% 52                       124,341                     0.26%

XXXXXXXXXX0691 
6 Bank of America C.D. 10/10/2000 30 days 0.15% 49                       118,587                     0.25%

XXXXXXXXXX1502 - SLESF
7 Morgan Stanley Smith Barney  

XXX-XX1902 (includes following Certificates of Deposits)
Scotia Bank CUSIP 80928EHD5 C.D. 7/2/2010 36 mos. 2.00% 1,000                  200,000                     0.43%
Ally Bank CUSIP 02004M6C2 C.D. 11/19/2010 36 mos. 1.34% 675                     200,756                     0.43%
BMW Bank CUSIP 05568PD46 C.D. 1/14/2011 36 mos. 1.29% 650                     201,026                     0.43%
Alliance Bank CUSIP 01853QCR7 C.D. 2/28/2011 36 mos. 1.49% 325                     100,604                     0.21%
Discover CUSIP 254671CL2 C.D. 6/13/2012 24 mos. 0.79% 496                     248,642                     0.53%
State Bank  CUSIP 856284YQ1 C.D. 3/24/2011 48 mos. 1.96% 1,000                  203,806                     0.43%
GE Capital CUSIP 36157QEX1 C.D. 6/15/2012 36 mos. 1.09% 682                     248,751                     0.53%
First Bank CUSIP 33764JFN0 C.D. 6/15/2012 48 mos. 1.24% 778                     250,258                     0.53%
Goldman Sachs Bank CUSIP 38143AND3 C.D. 3/28/2012 60 mos. 1.73% 875                     201,632                     0.43%
World Financial CUSIP 982999JF2 C.D. 6/8/2012 60 mos. 1.81% 925                     203,820                     0.43%

8 Wells Fargo Solar Project Checking 5/30/2013  0.04% 224                     5,153,051                  10.95%
XXXXXX5972

9 Wells Fargo LMGC Cap Reserve Savings ---- open 0.04% 9                         72,447                       0.15%
XXX-XXX2599

10 Union Bank of California Operating Account 6/24/2002 open 0.01% 168                     7,362,217                  15.65%
XXXXXX2250

11 Union Bank of California Premier Interest 10/13/2005 open 0.01% 0                         3,768                         0.01%
XXXXXX5284

12 Union Bank of California-Cinn Villas Operating Account 1/4/2013 open 0.01% 65                       2,680,131                  5.70%
XXXXXX2928

13 Union Bank of California-RDA Operating Account 6/24/2002 open 0.01% 245                     5,144,248                  10.93%
XXXXXX2269

14 Union Bank of Califonia-RDA 12/5/2005 open 0.01% 0                         9,099                         0.02%
XXXXXX5292 Permier Interest
Sub Total 24,921$              47,051,046$              100.00%
Weighted Average yield of all Investments 0.21%

City Of Lemoore/Lemoore Redevelopment Successor Agency
Summary of Investments 

As of  June 30, 2013





Type of Instrument Type of Fiscal Rate of Quarterly Market 
City Function Invest. Agent Interest Earnings Rec. Value

B. Cash with Fiscal Agents (Agent Control)
1 Golf Course Res. Fund U. S. Treasury Union Bank 0.00% 1                         657,740                     
2 Golf Course Lease Payment U. S. Treasury US Bank 0.00% -                     815                            
3 Golf Course Letter of Credit U. S. Treasury US Bank 0.00% -                     -                             

4 RDA 1998 Special Fund U. S. Treasury U.S. Bank -                     -                             
5 RDA 1998 Interest U. S. Treasury U.S. Bank -                             
6 RDA 1998 Reserve U. S. Treasury U.S. Bank 0.00% -                     399,930                     

7 RDA 2003 ('95) Special U. S. Treasury U.S. Bank -                             
8 RDA 2003 ('95)  Reserve U. S. Treasury U.S. Bank 0.00% 896,059                     

9 RDA 2011 Special Fund U. S. Treasury U.S. Bank 43                              
10 RDA 2011 Interest U. S. Treasury U.S. Bank -                             
11 RDA 2011 Reserve U. S. Treasury U.S. Bank 4.1600% 15,677                1,507,424                  
12 RDA 2011 Project Fund U. S. Treasury U.S. Bank 0.0013% 56                       16,635,074                

 Subtotal Cash with Fiscal Agents 15,734                20,097,085                

Total Investments 40,655$              67,148,130$              



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
William Siegel 

Mayor Pro Tem 
 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 

Lois Wynne 
Council Members 

John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
 

CALIFORNIA 
 

Public Works  
Department 

 
711 W. Cinnamon Drive 
Lemoore  CA  93245 

Phone  (559) 924-6735 
FAX  (559) 924-6708 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM 3G 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: David Wlaschin, Public Works/Planning Director 

Date: July 31, 2013  

Subject: Notice of Completion – Tract No. 872 Phase 1 – Heritage Acres – 
Wathen Castanos Hybrid Homes, Inc. 

 

 
Discussion: 
 

Wathen Castanos Hybrid Homes, Inc. has completed the off-site improvements in the 
first phase of Tract No. 872 and is now requesting the one year maintenance period to 
begin.  This subdivision is located south of Boxwood Drive north of Geneva Drive and 
east of Cinnamon Drive. 
 
Budget Impact: 
 

None. 
 
Recommendation: 
 

It is recommended that the City Council approve the filing of the Notice of Completion 
for Tract No. 872 Phase 1 with Wathen Castanos Hybrid Homes, Inc. and authorize the 
City Manager to sign. 
 
 
 



RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND 
WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO: 
 
City Clerk 
City of Lemoore 
119 Fox Street 
Lemoore, CA  93245 
 
 

NOTICE OF COMPLETION 
 

 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City Council of the City of Lemoore, 119 Fox 
Street, Lemoore, California, entered into an Agreement with WATHEN CASTANOS HYBRID 
HOMES, INC., for the construction of TRACT NO. 872 PHASE 1 within the City of Lemoore 
and that such work had been completed and accepted by the City of Lemoore on the _ 6th _ 
day of _August   , 2013. 
 
 
       CITY OF LEMOORE 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
                                                                            Jeff Laws, Acting City Manager 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Kristie R. Baley 
City Clerk 
 

CERTIFICATE 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA    ) 
COUNTY OF KINGS            )     ss. 
CITY OF LEMOORE            ) 
 
 I am the Public Works Director of the City of Lemoore.  I have read the foregoing 
Notice of Completion and know the contents thereof, and I certify that the same is true of my 
knowledge except to those matters, I believe it to be true and correct.  I certify under penalty 
of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. 
 
 EXECUTED this _____ day of ____________________, 2013 at Lemoore, California. 
 
 
 
______________________________________ 
David R. Wlaschin 
Public Works Director 
City of Lemoore 
 
 



 
 
 

PUBLIC AGENCY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 

 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
COUNTY OF KINGS         )     ss. 
CITY OF LEMOORE         ) 
 
 On ______________________________ before me, Kristie R. Baley, City Clerk, 
personally appeared Jeff Laws, proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the 
person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me 
that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by 
his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument, the person(s) or the entity upon behalf of which 
the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.  
 
I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 
foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 
 
 
________________________________ 
Kristie R. Baley 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 

PUBLIC AGENCY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
COUNTY OF KINGS         )  ss. 
CITY OF LEMOORE         ) 
 

On ______________________________ before me, Kristie R. Baley, City Clerk, 
personally appeared David R. Wlaschin, proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence 
to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and 
acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized 
capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument, the person(s) or the 
entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.  
 
I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 
foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 
 
 
________________________________ 
Kristie R. Baley 
City Clerk 
  



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
William Siegel 

Mayor Pro Tem 
 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 

Lois Wynne 
Council Members 

John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
 

CALIFORNIA 
 

Public Works 
Department 

 
711 W. Cinnamon Dr. 
Lemoore  CA  93245 

Phone  (559) 924-6735 
FAX  (559) 924-6708 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM 3H 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: David Wlaschin, Public Works/Planning Director 

Date: July 23, 2013  

Subject: Acceptance of Subdivision Agreement – Tract No. 872 Phases 2 
and 3 – Heritage Acres – Wathen Castanos Hybrid Homes, Inc. 

 

 
Discussion: 
 

Attached for Council review is a Subdivision Agreement with Wathen Castanos Hybrid 
Homes, Inc., for Heritage Acres Phases 2 and 3 consisting of 33 and 31 single family 
lots respectively.  The subdivision is located south of Boxwood Drive north of Geneva 
Drive and east of Cinnamon Drive. 
 

The subdivision map and construction drawings have been reviewed by the City 
Engineer.  Also the bonds have been submitted per the Subdivision Agreement and the 
applicable fees have been paid. 
 

The request for inclusion of Tract No. 872 Phases 2 and 3 in the Public Facilities 
Maintenance District is also included at this time. 
 
Budget Impact: 
 

None. 
 
Recommendation: 
 

It is recommended that Council: 
 

1. Approve the Subdivision Agreement for Tract 872 Phases 2 and 3 with Wathen 
Castanos Hybrid Homes, Inc. and authorize the City Manager to sign. 

 

2. Accept and record subdivision map for Tract 872 Phases 2 and 3. 
 

3. Include Tract No. 872 Phases 2 and 3 in Public Facilities Maintenance District. 
 
 
 



                                     

 1

CITY OF LEMOORE 
 

SUBDIVISION TRACT AGREEMENT 
TRACT NO. 872, PHASES 2 & 3 

 
 
 

 THIS AGREEMENT, made the _________ day of _________________, 2013 by and between 
the City Council of the City of Lemoore, hereinafter referred to as "CITY" and Wathen Castanos 
Hybrid Homes, Inc., hereinafter referred to as the "SUBDIVIDER". 
 

W I T N E S S E T H 
 

 WHEREAS, the Subdivider as the owner has heretofore filed a tentative subdivision map of 
that certain real property known and designated as TRACT NO. 872, PHASES 2 AND 3 in the City, 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Subdivider has presented to City a certain proposed final map, a copy of 
which is on file at the office of the Director of Public Works, and by reference thereto made a part of 
this agreement, and said Subdivider has requested the City to accept the dedications delineated and 
shown on said map for the use and purpose specified thereon, and to otherwise approve said map in 
order that the same may be recorded as required by law, and 
  
 WHEREAS, the City requires, as a condition precedent to the acceptance and approval of said 
map, the dedication of such streets, highways, and public places and easements as are delineated 
and shown on said map, and deems the same necessary for public use, and requires and deems as 
necessary for the public use that any and all streets delineated and shown thereon shall be improved 
by the construction thereon and the installation therein of the improvements in said proposed 
subdivision as hereinafter specified, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the parties hereto have agreed that the improvement of said land included and 
shown by said final map shall be completed in accordance with the applicable ordinances and 
resolutions of the City and the laws of the State of California and the Subdivider has agreed to post 
the necessary improvement security to guarantee said improvement in accordance with the laws of 
the State of California and the ordinances of the City. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the acceptance of the offers of dedication of streets, 
highways, public ways, easements, and facilities as shown and delineated on said map, and the 
approval of said map for filing and recording as provided and required by law, it is mutually 
understood and agreed by and between the Subdivider and City and they do hereby mutually agree 
as follows: 
 
 1. Onsite and Offsite Improvements.  Subdivider agrees that it will construct and install 
in accordance with the plans prepared for   Tract No. 872 Phases 2 and 3   by   Gary G. Gianetta, 
Civil Engineer    and approved by the City Engineer, which plans are hereby incorporated by 
reference, at its sole cost and expense and in full conformity with the standards prescribed by City, all 
of the following work and subdivision improvements.  
 

A. All landmarks, monuments and lot corners required to locate the divisions 
shown on the Final Map.  Pursuant to Section 66497 of the State Subdivision 
Map Act prior to the City's final acceptance of the subdivision and release of 
securities, the Subdivider shall submit evidence to the City of payment and 



                                     

 2

receipt thereof by the Subdivider's engineer or surveyor for the final setting of 
all monuments required in the subdivision. 

 
B. Street improvements including curbs, gutters, sidewalks, paving and street 

signs. 
 

C. Storm drainage facilities including valley gutters.   
 

D. Extension of the City water system including water mains, valves, services, fire 
hydrants and miscellaneous appurtenances. 

 
E. Sanitary sewer system including sewer mains, manholes, house branches and 

appurtenances.   
 

F. Street lighting facilities, including electroliers, stands and underground electrical 
service. 

 
G. Street trees shall be planted by the Developer at the time the dwelling unit on 

the lot is finaled.  Number of trees to be planted shall be calculated on the 
length of curb and gutter within the local subdivision area divided by 40 feet. 
The variety of tree shall be selected from the Master Street Tree list.  

 
H. Public utility facilities including gas, electric, telephone and cable television 

service.  Financial arrangements shall be made with the respective public utility, 
and proof of this arrangement shall be furnished to the City upon request. 

 
  I. Street signs shall be paid for at a cost of $205 per sign.  Total payment for 

installation of  6  street sign poles is $1,230.  
 
  J. If Subdivider has not acquired all necessary rights of way and easements as of 

the date the final map is recorded, and the City must undertake the acquisitions 
pursuant to Section 66462.5 of the Government Code, Subdivider shall pay 
100% of City’s acquisition costs, including, but not limited to, appraisal and 
court costs and attorneys fees and shall make such deposits and/or advance 
payments to the City as the City may reasonably require for such purpose. 

 
 
 Subdivider further agrees to pay at the time of filing of the Improvement Security hereinafter 
required by Paragraph 12 of this Agreement an amount to cover the City's costs of engineering and 
inspection as may be set by the City's Municipal Code. 
 
 The estimated costs of all said improvements remaining to be completed, including a ten 
percent (10%) contingency, is $1,379,181 , as shown on Exhibit "A", attached hereto. 
 
   
2. Inspection of Work.  The City shall inspect all work to be done and performed by the 
Subdivider and Subdivider agrees that all work, improvements and materials to be done and supplied 
and performed shall be done, supplied and performed in strict accordance with the approved 
construction plans of said work on file in the Office of the City Engineer of the City, and in accordance 
with the standard specifications of the City, which said plans and specifications and standards are 
hereby referred to and incorporated by reference in this Agreement.  All of said work and 
improvements and materials shall be done, performed, and installed to the satisfaction of the City 



                                     

 3

Engineer of the City.  Subdivider agrees to pay all fees for such inspection as required by the current 
City Code and fee resolutions and agrees to pay an additional three percent (3%) for reinspection 
required by reason of defective work, improvements and/or materials. 
 
 3. Final Acceptance.  Upon completion of all said work and improvements and 
acceptance thereof by City, or upon the acceptance by City of the required Improvement Security 
referred to in Paragraph 12 hereof, the City agrees to approve the final subdivision map, and to 
accept on behalf of the public all lands, rights-of-way and easements offered for dedication in 
accordance with the conditions herein set forth.  A complete set of "as built" reproducible plans shall 
be filed with the City upon completion of the work and improvements. 
 
 4. Completion of Said Work of Improvements.  Subdivider agrees to complete the 
work and improvements as herein set forth within a period of twenty-four (24) months from the date of 
this Agreement.  When a delay occurs due to unforeseen causes beyond the control and without the 
fault or negligence of the Subdivider, the time of completion may be extended for a period justified by 
the effect of such delay on the completion of the work.  The Subdivider shall file a written request for a 
time extension with the Director of Public Works prior to the above noted date, who shall ascertain the 
facts and determine the extent of justifiable delays, if any.  The Director of Public Works shall give the 
Subdivider written notice of his determination in writing, which shall be final and conclusive.  In the 
event an extension is granted to the time within which all work is to be completed on this subdivision, 
the Subdivider hereby agrees that he will comply with all the applicable improvement standards in 
effect at the time of said extension. 
 
 5. Maintenance of Improvements Following Acceptance.  Upon satisfactory 
completion of all improvements required in accordance with this agreement and acceptance thereof 
by the City, the City agrees to accept for maintenance the improvements to be constructed in 
accordance with this Agreement; provided, however, within fifteen (15) days after written notice from 
the City, the Subdivider agrees to remedy any defects in the improvements arising from faulty or 
defective construction of said improvements occurring within twelve (12) months after acceptance 
thereof. 
 
 6. Safety.  Subdivider shall perform all work in accordance with the applicable sections of 
Title 3 of the California Administrative Code (CAL OSHA), and the Manual of Traffic Controls, Warning 
Signs, Lights, and Devices for Use in Performance of Work Upon Highways, published by California 
Department of Transportation, and available at the City Engineer's Office.  Provisions shall be made 
by Subdivider for protection of the traveling public on all public roads affected by the improvements. 
 
 Barricades and related facilities shall be placed in such number and in such locations as 
required for public safety, and at night they shall be equipped with flashing yellow lights.  City reserves 
the right to require and Subdivider shall promptly install or place additional barricades or other 
facilities to assure public safety if City shall deem the same to be necessary or desirable for public 
safety.  Subdivider is responsible for all liability which may arise out of work herein permitted whether 
or not on public property, and shall indemnify, defend and hold City harmless from any and all claims, 
damages, or causes of action arising therefrom or related thereto. 
 
 7. Insurance and Indemnity.    The Subdivider shall take and assume all responsibility 
for the construction of the improvements and the safety of operation in connection therewith.  The 
Subdivider shall bear all losses and damages directly or indirectly resulting to the City, its officers, 
agents, and employees or to others on account of the construction of the improvements, unforeseen 
difficulties, accidents, or any other causes whatsoever. 
 
 The Subdivider shall assume the defense of and indemnify and save harmless the City, its 



                                     

 4

officers, agents, and employees from all claims, loss, damage, injury and liability of every kind, nature, 
and description, directly or indirectly arising from the construction of the improvements. 
 
 Subdivider further agrees that before commencing any work pursuant to this agreement, 
Subdivider will obtain, and at all times prior to final acceptance of all improvements hereunder, and  
will keep in full force and effect, insurance coverage in such limits and amounts, and covering such 
risks as shall be acceptable to the City.  In the event that no other requirement is made known to 
Subdivider, the minimum coverage and limits shall be as follows: 
 
             COVERAGE                                                                            LIMITS 
 
Workers Compensation   Statutory 
 
Comprehensive General Liability,  
including or separately insuring 
liability assumed by contract 
 
     Bodily Injury                                               $   500,000 per person 
                                                                                  $1,000,000 per occurrence 
      
     Property Damage                                               $  250,000 per occurrence 
 
 Subdivider shall, prior to commencement of construction work, furnish to City a certificate of 
insurance, which shall provide that the above insurance shall not be cancelled without 30 days prior 
written notice to City, and which shall also show the City, its officers and employees, as additional 
named insureds (except as to worker's compensation coverage). 
 
 8. Compliance with Codes.  Subdivider shall comply with any and all ordinances and 
resolutions or other codes of the City applicable to the proposed subdivision and the work to be done 
by Subdivider under the terms of this Agreement. 
 
 9. Notice of Commencement of Work.  The Subdivider shall give the City's Engineer 
written notice of not less than two working days in advance of the actual date on which work is to be 
started.  Failure on the part of the contractor to notify the City's Engineer may cause delay for which 
the Subdivider shall be solely responsible. 
 
 Whenever the Subdivider varies the period which work is carried on each day, he shall give 
due notice to the City's Engineer so that proper inspection may be provided.  Any work done in the 
absence of the City's Engineer or his duly authorized inspectors may be subject to rejection. 
 
 The inspection of work shall not relieve the Subdivider of any of his obligations to fulfill this 
Agreement as prescribed, and the Subdivider agrees that defective work shall be made good, and 
unsuitable materials may be rejected, notwithstanding the fact that such defective work and unsuitable 
materials have been previously overlooked by the City's Engineer or Inspector and accepted. 
 
 Any damage to sewer systems, concrete work or street paving or other works of 
improvements, as required by this agreement, that occurs after installation and prior to the 
acceptance thereof by the City shall be made good by the Subdivider, to the satisfaction of the City's 
Engineer, before release of the Improvement Security guaranteeing said work. 
 
  10. Dust Control.  The Subdivider shall be responsible for the complete control of 
dust during the construction of the subdivision improvements and will take the following measures to 



                                     

 5

reduce dust generation during the development and construction of the subdivision: 
 
 

A. Submit for approval by the Director of Public Works a program for the control of 
dust, which shall include but not be limited to, a watering schedule (frequency  
and time of day), use of dust control emulsions, and/or other measures 
necessary for the control of dust. 

 
B. Provide equipment and manpower for watering of all exposed or disturbed soil 

surfaces including on weekends and holidays. 
 

C. Sweep construction area and adjacent streets of all mud and dust daily at the 
end of the work day. 

 
D. The developer shall deposit with the City $5,000 which may be used by the City 

for dust control measures on this development should the developer fail to 
adequately control dust.  In case the City incurs cost for dust control in excess 
of the above amount, the developer shall reimburse the City for the total cost of 
dust control incurred by the City.  Upon acceptance by the City of the 
subdivision improvements, the above amount, less any amount expended by 
the City for dust control, shall be returned to the Developer. 

 
 11. Repair by City of any Work Damaged or Destroyed by City.  In the event that the 
City should damage, destroy or tear up any of the paving or other subdivision improvements to be 
installed by the Subdivider under the terms of this agreement in order to install sewer or water service 
connections or any other services to said subdivision that could have been installed prior to the 
installation of said paving or other subdivision improvements, the City agrees to repair and replace 
such destroyed paving or other subdivision improvements at its own cost and expense. 
 
 12. Improvement Security.  Upon execution of this agreement, the Subdivider shall obtain 
and file with the City good and sufficient Improvement Security in favor of the City and in the form 
approved by City securing the faithful performance by Subdivider of the work of improvement required 
by the provisions of this agreement in the sum of $1,379,181. 
 
 Said Improvement Security shall be an Improvement Security as defined and described in the 
Government Code of the State of California Section 66499, et. seq. and it is agreed that the City 
Council of the City has determined that the amount of said Improvement Security has been fixed at 
One Hundred Percent (100%) of the total estimated cost of said improvements as hereinabove set 
forth in Paragraph 1, conditioned upon the Subdivider's faithful performance of this agreement, and an 
additional amount of fifty percent (50%) of the total estimated cost of said improvement as 
hereinabove set forth in Paragraph 1, securing payment to the contractor, his subcontractors and to 
persons furnishing labor, materials, or equipment to them for the improvement. 
  

A. Release of Improvement Security given for faithful performance of this 
agreement: 

  
The Subdivider may request the City to inspect the work as it progresses.  If the 
work performed is inspected and found to be constructed in conformity with the 
requirements of the City, a partial release of the Improvement Security for 
faithful performance of this agreement shall be made in the sum in the same 
ratio of the total deposit as the work inspected bears to the total work to be 
done.  No release of Improvement Security for faithful performance of this 



                                     

 6

agreement in excess of eighty-five percent (85%) of the total amount of                  
$1,379,181 shall be made until all the work has been completed and accepted. 
 
The determination of the City as to the amount of work done and the amount of 
Improvement Security to be released shall be final and conclusive. 

 
When the work of improvement is accepted, not less than ten (10%) percent of 
the total improvements costs to guarantee the faithful performance of the 
provisions of this agreement relating to defective or faulty construction for a 
period of one year following completion and acceptance thereof.  The total 
improvement costs for this project is $1,379,181. 

 
B. Release of Improvement Security securing the payment of contractors, 

subcontractors and to persons furnishing labor, materials, or equipment: 
 

The Subdivider may certify to the City that any phase of the work required by 
terms of this agreement as set forth in Paragraph 1 of this agreement has been 
completed.  Upon certification by City's Engineer that such phase of said work 
has been completed and inspected by City, the portion of said Improvement 
Security furnished by Subdivider for the purpose of securing the payment of the 
contractor, his subcontractors and persons furnishing labor, materials, or 
equipment for said phase or phases of said work shall be released six (6) 
months after the completion and acceptance of said work in an amount 
determined by the City Engineer, less an amount equal to all claims upon which 
an action has been filed and notice given in writing to the City Council of the 
City, and if no actions are filed such portion of said Improvement Security for 
said phase of said work shall be released in full. 

 
Such release shall not apply to any required guarantee and warranty period nor 
to the amount of security deemed necessary by the City in such guarantee and 
warranty period nor to costs and reasonable expenses and fees, including 
reasonable attorney's fees. 

 
 13. Title Held Under Holding Agreement.  Where title to the subdivided property is held 
by the record owner thereof under a holding agreement, this agreement and the bond given pursuant 
thereto may be executed by the real party or parties in interest. 
 
 14. Extension of time Not to Release Improvement Securities.  Any extension of time 
hereunder shall not operate to release the surety on any Improvement Security given pursuant to this 
agreement and the said surety shall waive the provisions of Section 2819 of the Civil Code of the 
State of California. 
 
 15. Time.  Time is of the essence of this agreement, and the same shall bind and inure to 
the benefit of the parties hereto, their successors and assigns. 
 
 
 16. Attorney's Fees.  In the event legal action is taken by the City to enforce the terms of 
this agreement, or remedy the breach thereof, or in any action against the surety, the court shall 
award to the City a sum representing its reasonable attorney's fees. 
 
 
 



                                     

 7

 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have executed this agreement or caused the same to be 
executed by the officer thereunto duly authorized, on the day and year first written above. 
                                         
    CITY OF LEMOORE 
 
 
 
                                                                          By______________________________ 
        JEFF LAWS, Acting City Manager 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Kristie R. Baley, City Clerk 
     
    WATHEN CASTANOS HYBRID HOMES, INC.: 
 
 
    By_____________________________ 
                                                          



                                     

 8

 
 
 

EXHIBIT "A" 
 
 

ENGINEERING ESTIMATE 
 

Tract No. 872 Phases 2 & 3 
 
 
 
 
   Street Construction $  738,891  
 
    Sanitary Sewer $  115,200            
 
   Water                       $  178,300             
 
   Storm Drain $    20,260 
 
   Miscellaneous $  326,530 
 
    
            TOTAL $1,379,181 
  
 



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
William Siegel 

Mayor Pro Tem 
 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 

Lois Wynne 
Council Members 

John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
 

CALIFORNIA 
 

Maintenance and Fleet 
Division 

 
711 Cinnamon Drive 

Lemoore  CA  93245 
Phone  (559) 924-6739 
FAX  (559) 924-9708 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM 3I 
To: Lemoore City Council 

From: Joe Simonson, Parks and Recreation Director 

Date: July 30, 2013 

Subject: Notice of Completion – CMC Office – Phase 1 – Insulation Project  

 
Discussion: 
 

The Cinnamon Municipal Complex (CMC) Office PH1 Insulation Project has been 
completed per plans, specifications and any change orders.   Broken Drum Insulation, 
Visalia is now requesting that a Notice of Completion be filed and retention payments 
released.   
 
Budget Impact: 
 

The Capital Improvement Program CMC Office PH1 budget 4714B contract bid for 
insulation has a retention amount of $2,555 and will complete the total project payout of 
$25,056 per bid. 
 
Recommendation: 
 

That the City Council, by motion, approve the filing of the Notice of Completion for the 
CMC Office PH1 Insulation Project, authorize the City Manager to sign and release the 
final payment to Broken Drum Insulation Visalia, in the amount of $2,555. 
 
 

 
 



RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND 
WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO: 
 
City Clerk 
City of Lemoore 
119 Fox Street 
Lemoore, CA  93245 
 
 

NOTICE OF COMPLETION 
 

 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City Council of the City of Lemoore, 119 Fox 
Street, Lemoore, California, entered into an Agreement with Broken Drum Insulation Visalia, 
Inc. for the CMC Office Remodel PH1 Insulation portion of the project and that such work had 
been completed and accepted by the City of Lemoore on the   6th   day of _  August       , 
2013. 
 
 
       CITY OF LEMOORE 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
                                                                            Jeff Laws, Acting City Manager 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Kristie R. Baley, City Clerk 
 

CERTIFICATE 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA    ) 
COUNTY OF KINGS            )     ss. 
CITY OF LEMOORE            ) 
 
 I am the Parks and Recreation Director of the City of Lemoore.  I have read the 
foregoing Notice of Completion and know the contents thereof, and I certify that the same is 
true of my knowledge except to those matters, I believe it to be true and correct.  I certify 
under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. 
 
 EXECUTED this _____ day of ____________________, 2013 at Lemoore, California. 
 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Joe W. Simonson 
Parks and Recreation Director 
City of Lemoore 
 
 
 



 
 

PUBLIC AGENCY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 

 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
COUNTY OF KINGS         )     ss. 
CITY OF LEMOORE         ) 
 
 On ______________________________ before me, Kristie R. Baley, City Clerk, 
personally appeared Jeff Laws, proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the 
person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me 
that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by 
his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument, the person(s) or the entity upon behalf of which 
the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.  
 
I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 
foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 
 
 
________________________________ 
Kristie R. Baley 
City Clerk 
 
 

PUBLIC AGENCY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
COUNTY OF KINGS         )  ss. 
CITY OF LEMOORE         ) 

 
On ______________________________ before me, Kristie R. Baley, City Clerk, 

personally appeared Joe W. Simonson, proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to 
be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and 
acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized 
capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument, the person(s) or the 
entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.  
 
I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 
foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 
 
 
________________________________ 
Kristie R. Baley 
City Clerk 
 
 



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
William Siegel 

Mayor Pro Tem 
 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 

Lois Wynne 
Council Members 

John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
 

CALIFORNIA 
 

Maintenance and Fleet 
Division 

 
711 Cinnamon Drive 

Lemoore  CA  93245 
Phone  (559) 924-6739 
FAX  (559) 924-9708 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM 3J 
To: Lemoore City Council 

From: Joe Simonson, Parks and Recreation Director 

Date: July 30, 2013 

Subject: Notice of Completion – CMC Office – Phase 1 – Drywall  
Tape and Texture Project 

 
Discussion: 
 

The Cinnamon Municipal Complex (CMC) Office PH1 Drywall Tape and Texture project 
has been completed per plans, specifications and any change orders.   Duff and Reed 
Construction has presented an invoice and a Notice of Completion is attached. 
 
Budget Impact: 
 

The Capital Improvement Program CMC Office PH1 budget 4714B contract bid for 
drywall tape and texture work was $17,150 with a change order in the amount of $1,200, 
for a total project payout of $18,350. 
 
Recommendation: 
 

That the City Council, by motion, approve the filing of the Notice of Completion for the 
CMC Office PH1 Drywall Tape and Texture project, authorize the City Manager to sign 
and release the full payment to Duff and Reed Construction, in the amount of $18,350. 
 
 

 
 



RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND 
WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO: 
 
City Clerk 
City of Lemoore 
119 Fox Street 
Lemoore, CA  93245 
 
 

NOTICE OF COMPLETION 
 

 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City Council of the City of Lemoore, 119 Fox 
Street, Lemoore, California, entered into an Agreement with Duff and Reed Construction for 
the CMC Office Remodel PH1 Drywall Tape and Texture portion of the project and that such 
work had been completed and accepted by the City of Lemoore on the  6th  day of         
August, 2013.  
 
 
       CITY OF LEMOORE 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
                                                                            Jeff Laws, Acting City Manager 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Kristie R. Baley, City Clerk 
 

CERTIFICATE 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA    ) 
COUNTY OF KINGS            )     ss. 
CITY OF LEMOORE            ) 
 
 I am the Parks and Recreation Director of the City of Lemoore.  I have read the 
foregoing Notice of Completion and know the contents thereof, and I certify that the same is 
true of my knowledge except to those matters, I believe it to be true and correct.  I certify 
under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. 
 
 EXECUTED this   6th  day of August , 2013 at Lemoore, California. 
 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Joe W. Simonson 
Parks and Recreation Director 
City of Lemoore 
 
 
 



 
 

PUBLIC AGENCY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 

 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
COUNTY OF KINGS         )     ss. 
CITY OF LEMOORE         ) 
 

 On ______________________________ before me, Kristie R. Baley, City 
Clerk, personally appeared Jeff Laws, proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to 
be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and 
acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized 
capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument, the person(s) or the 
entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.  
 
I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 
foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 
 
 
________________________________ 
Kristie R. Baley 
City Clerk 
 
 
 

PUBLIC AGENCY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
COUNTY OF KINGS         )  ss. 
CITY OF LEMOORE         ) 
 

 On ______________________________ before me, Kristie R. Baley, City 
Clerk, personally appeared Joe W. Simonson, proved to me on the basis of satisfactory 
evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and 
acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized 
capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument, the person(s) or the 
entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.  
 
I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 
foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 
 
 
________________________________ 
Kristie R. Baley 
City Clerk 
 
 
 



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
William Siegel 

Mayor Pro Tem 
 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 

Lois Wynne 
Council Members 

John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
 

CALIFORNIA 
 

Maintenance and Fleet 
Division 

 
711 Cinnamon Drive 

Lemoore  CA  93245 
Phone  (559) 924-6739 
FAX  (559) 924-9708 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM 3K 
To: Lemoore City Council 

From: Joe Simonson, Parks and Recreation Director 

Date: July 30, 2013 

Subject: Notice of Completion – 2012-13 Double Chip Seal / Cape Seal Project  

 
Discussion: 
 

Quad Knopf has notified staff that the 2012-13 CIP Double Chip Seal/Cape Seal Project 
has been completed and a Notice of Completion can be filed and retention payment 
released.    The International Slurry Seal (VSS) retention amount to be released is 
$33,217.70.  
 

This project was extended due to inclement weather and was revised to a cape seal 
procedure for streets not completed last year. 
 
Budget Impact: 
 

The Capital Improvement Program budget 4729A and 4734C total construction cost is 
$685,797.14.   The changes provided a cost saving from the original bid of $777,900.00.  
Engineering fees to date are approximately $51,400.   
 
Recommendation: 
 

That the City Council, by motion, approve the filing of the Notice of Completion for the 
2012-13 Double Chip Sealing/Cape Seal Conversion Project, authorize the City Manager 
to sign and release the final retention payment to International Slurry Seal in the amount 
of $33,217.70. 
 

 
 



RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND 
WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO: 
 
City Clerk 
City of Lemoore 
119 Fox Street 
Lemoore, CA  93245 
 
 

NOTICE OF COMPLETION 
 

 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City Council of the City of Lemoore, 119 Fox 
Street, Lemoore, California, entered into an Agreement with INTERNATIONAL SLURRY 
SEAL (VSS) for the Lemoore Street 2012-13 Double Chip Seal/Cape Seal project for various 
identified Lemoore City Streets and that such work had been completed and accepted by the 
City of Lemoore on the   6th   day of _  August       , 2013. 
 
 
       CITY OF LEMOORE 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
                                                                            Jeff Laws, Acting City Manager 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Kristie R. Baley, City Clerk 
 

CERTIFICATE 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA    ) 
COUNTY OF KINGS            )     ss. 
CITY OF LEMOORE            ) 
 
 I am the Parks and Recreation Director of the City of Lemoore.  I have read the 
foregoing Notice of Completion and know the contents thereof, and I certify that the same is 
true of my knowledge except to those matters, I believe it to be true and correct.  I certify 
under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. 
 
 EXECUTED this _____ day of ____________________, 2013 at Lemoore, California. 
 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Joe W. Simonson 
Parks and Recreation Director 
City of Lemoore 
 
 
 



 
 

PUBLIC AGENCY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 

 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
COUNTY OF KINGS         )     ss. 
CITY OF LEMOORE         ) 
 

 On ______________________________ before me, Kristie R. Baley, City 
Clerk, personally appeared Jeff Laws, proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to 
be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and 
acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized 
capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument, the person(s) or the 
entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.  
 
I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 
foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 
 
 
________________________________ 
Kristie R. Baley 
City Clerk 
 
 

PUBLIC AGENCY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
COUNTY OF KINGS         )  ss. 
CITY OF LEMOORE         ) 
 

 On ______________________________ before me, Kristie R. Baley, City 
Clerk, personally appeared Joe W. Simonson, proved to me on the basis of satisfactory 
evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and 
acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized 
capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument, the person(s) or the 
entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.  
 
I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 
foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 
 
 
________________________________ 
Kristie R. Baley 
City Clerk 
 
 
 



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
William Siegel 

Mayor Pro Tem 
 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 

Lois Wynne 
Council Members 

John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
 

CALIFORNIA 
 

Public Works  
Department 

 
711 W. Cinnamon Drive 
Lemoore  CA  93245 

Phone  (559) 924-6735 
FAX  (559) 924-6708 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM 3L 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: David Wlaschin, Public Works/Planning Director 

Date: July 31, 2013  

Subject: Notice of Completion – 19th Avenue Construction/Relocation of 
Sewer and Water Facilities  

 

 
Discussion: 
 

West Valley Construction has completed the construction/relocation of sewer and 
facilities on 19th Avenue in conjunction with the 19th Avenue interchange at Highway 
198.  The work included the construction of a sanitary sewer lift station at 19th Avenue 
Park and the relocation of the Silva Sanitary Lift Station along with the relocation of 
water and sewer lines. 
 
Budget Impact: 
 

Final construction cost of approximately $1,500,000 will be reimbursed by the State of 
California Department of Transportation. 
 
Recommendation: 
 

It is recommended that Council approve the Notice of Completion with West Valley 
Construction for the 19th Avenue Construction/Relocation of Sewer and Water Facilities 
and authorize the City Manager to sign. 
 
 
 



RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND 
WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO: 
 
City Clerk 
City of Lemoore 
119 Fox Street 
Lemoore, CA  93245 
 
 

NOTICE OF COMPLETION 
 
 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City Council of the City of Lemoore, 119 
Fox Street, Lemoore, California, entered into an Agreement with WEST VALLEY 
CONSTRUCTION for the 19TH Avenue Construction/Relocation of Sewer and Water 
Facilities in Lemoore and that such work had been completed and accepted by the City 
of Lemoore on the   6th   day of    August    , 2013. 
 
    CITY OF LEMOORE 
 
 
    _________________________                 
     Jeff Laws, Acting City Manager 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Kristie R. Baley, City Clerk 
 

CERTIFICATE 
 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA   ) 
CITY OF LEMOORE          ) ss. 
COUNTY OF KINGS          ) 
 
 I am the Public Works Director of the City of Lemoore.  I have read the 
foregoing Notice of Completion and know the contents thereof, and I certify that the 
same is true of my own knowledge except to those matters, I believe it to be true and 
correct.  I certify under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. 
 
 EXECUTED this           day of                   , 2013 at Lemoore, California. 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
David R. Wlaschin 
Public Works Director 
City of Lemoore 
 



PUBLIC AGENCY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 

 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA   ) 
COUNTY OF KINGS          )  ss. 
CITY OF LEMOORE          ) 
 

 On ______________________________ before me, Kristie R. Baley, City 
Clerk, personally appeared Jeff Laws, proved to me on the basis of satisfactory 
evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument 
and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized 
capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument, the person(s) or 
the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.  
 
I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 
foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 
 
 
________________________________ 
Kristie R. Baley 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 

PUBLIC AGENCY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA   ) 
COUNTY OF KINGS          )  ss. 
CITY OF LEMOORE          ) 
 

 On ______________________________ before me, Kristie R. Baley, City 
Clerk, personally appeared David R. Wlaschin, proved to me on the basis of satisfactory 
evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument 
and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized 
capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument, the person(s) or 
the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.  
 
I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 
foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 
 
 
________________________________ 
Kristie R. Baley 
City Clerk 
 



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
William Siegel 
Mayor Pro Tem 

 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 

Lois Wynne 
Council Members 

John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
 

CALIFORNIA 
 

Office of the  
City Manager 

 
119 Fox Street 

Lemoore  CA  9324 
Phone  (559) 924-6700 
FAX  (559) 924-9003 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM 3M 
To: Lemoore City Council 

From: Kristie R. Baley, City Clerk 

Date: July 31, 2013 

Subject: Letter of Support for Waste Management Expansion 
 

 
Discussion: 
 

On May 1, 2012, Council approved a letter to the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
in support of the expansion of the B-18 hazardous waste landfill at Waste 
Management’s Kettleman Hills Facility.   A copy of that letter has been provided with 
this staff report.  Waste Management is now seeking approval from the Department of 
Toxic Substances Control to grant necessary permits for the continued operation and 
expansion of its B-18 landfill.   
 

As previously presented in May of 2012, the expansion is necessary because the 
Facility is nearing its allowable capacity.  A Draft Environmental Impact Review (EIR) 
was prepared in 2008 and subsequently revised, recirculated, finaled and amended, as 
shown in Waste Management’s website: http://kettlemanhillslandfill.wm.com/facility-
expansion/index.jsp.   
 

Waste Management has been an integral part of Kings County for over 32 years.  It is 
one of the County’s largest employers with approximately 90 employees from Lemoore 
and the surrounding communities.  Information gathered from its website boasts that 
when operating at its normal capacity, economic benefits to the local economy total 
$17.5 million each year through payroll and the purchase of goods and services, while 
nearly $3 million goes directly to the County General Fund.   
 

It should be noted that the Kettleman Hills Facility has proven to be a safe facility.  As 
shown in the attached Fact Sheet, the facility has undergone rigorous State and Federal 
analyses to determine any health or environmental risks to Kettleman City or the 
surrounding communities.  The findings indicate that the Facility’s risk levels were well 
below the benchmarks set by the State and Federal agencies. 
 

Waste Management asks that the City of Lemoore show its support again by approving 
the attached draft letter to the Department of Toxic Substances Control in support of the 
proposed expansion, as written or amended.   
 

Waste Management Senior District Manager Bob Henry and Kettleman Hills Facility 
Community Relations Manager Cecilio Berrera will be present to answer any questions 
you may have. 
 



“In God We Trust” 

Budget Impact: 
 

None. 
 
Recommendation: 
 

That Council consider Waste Management’s request for support in favor of the 
proposed expansion of the B-18 hazardous waste landfill at its Kettleman Hills Facility 
and authorize the Mayor to sign the letter. 



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
William Siegel  

               City of 

LEMOORE 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Lois Wynne 

Council Members 
John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
 

CALIFORNIA 

Office of the 
Mayor 

 
119 Fox Street 

Lemoore  CA  93245 
Phone  (559) 924-6700 
FAX  (559) 924-9003 

 

August 6, 2013 
 
 
 
 
Deborah O. Raphael 
Director 
Department of Toxic Substances Control 
1001 I Street 
Sacramento, CA 95814-2828 
 
 
Dear Ms. Raphael: 
 
On August 6, 2013 our City Council voted to urge DTSC to grant the necessary permits 
to Waste Management for the continued operation and expansion of its B-18 landfill at 
the Kettleman Hills Facility. 
 
The City of Lemoore last year sent a letter to US EPA strongly supporting the continued 
operation and expansion of the Kettleman Hills Facility. We have been closely following 
the permitting process for the Kettleman Hills Facility for many years. In addition, we 
have been briefed on the numerous health and environmental studies conducted and the 
results shared by the agencies.  
 
Waste Management provides a critical and essential public service to our City, Kings 
County and the entire Central Valley. The City of Lemoore relies on the Kettleman Hills 
Facility for the safe treatment and disposal of our hazardous waste; this expansion is 
important to our City.  In addition to the dozens of people that Waste Management 
employs at the Kettleman Hills Facility, the Facility contributes millions in taxes, payroll, 
and charitable contributions annually and generates a positive economic impact to the 
Central Valley.  However, we would not be making this request if we did not believe that 
the Facility was safe, well regulated and did not provide and essential public service to 
our City and Kings County. 
 
We have worked with Waste Management for many years.  We have found WM to be a 
good corporate citizen and community partner.  Waste Management has many 
employees from Lemoore and until the last few years many more residents were 
employed at the Kettleman Hills Facility.   
 
We urge DTSC to grant Waste Management and the Kettleman Hills Facility the 
necessary permits so they can continue to provide the hazardous waste treatment and 



“In God We Trust” 

disposal needs of our City. We believe the time has come to issue Waste Management 
the necessary permits.   
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at (559) 924-6700. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
William Siegel 
Mayor 
 
 
Cc:  Supervisor Richard Valle, Kings County Board of Supervisors         
        Robert G. Henry, Waste Management, Kettleman Hills Facility 
       
 
 



Waste Management’s Kettleman Hills Facility has been an integral part of the 
Kings County community for more than 28 years.  The facility is located on 1,600 
acres and includes two distinct operations — one that handles municipal solid 
waste, such as everyday household trash, and one that handles hazardous waste.

Safe operations, health and safety, and the environment are held to the highest 
standards at the Kettleman Hills Facility.  The facility is heavily regulated 
through permits and ongoing monitoring by more than 10 government agencies 
at the local, state and federal levels.   

Proposed Plans
To better serve the surrounding communities and their business needs, WM is 
proposing to extend its hazardous waste operations.  The proposal seeks the 
following approvals:
  Authorization to increase the capacity at the existing hazardous waste landfill 

(B-18 landfill).
  Authorization to construct a new hazardous waste landfill (B-20 landfill) to 

open once B-18 landfill has reached capacity.

Environmental Impact Report
  A subsequent environmental impact report studying the project was conducted 

by Kings County.
  The report analyzed project impacts and mitigations, including air quality, 

traffic, hydrology and water quality among others.
  A draft version of the environmental impact report and a Spanish version 

of the executive summary was circulated to the public to review and submit 
official comments to Kings County.

Permits & Regulations
The Kettleman Hills Facility works closely with numerous government entities to 
comply with regulations and procedures concerning our operations, including:

  California Department of Toxic Substances Control
  California Integrated Waste Management Board
  California Regional Water Quality Control Board
  Kings County Department of Public Health
  San Joaquin Valley Unified Air Pollution Control District 

Our proposed plans require approvals and permits from the agencies that oversee 
our facility.

Community Feedback
Community input and feedback are important for the project’s success.  Kings 
County has hosted public meetings and community roundtables which have 
included English/Spanish translation.  In addition, Waste Management has 
reached out to residents through open houses and numerous community-focused 
events.  Kings County residents are encouraged to visit our facility and learn 
about our operations.

Kettleman Hills Facility

Facts & 
 Figures

  Total site acreage: 1,600
  Total operations acreage: 499
   Permitted to handle both 

municipal solid waste and 
hazardous waste

   Location: approximately 3.5  
miles southwest of Kettleman 
City, 6.5 miles southeast of the 
City of Avenal and about 2.5 
miles west of Interstate 5 along 
State Route 41

WASTE  
MANAGEMENT

KETTLEMAN HILLS FACILITY

For a tour or more information, please contact Helen Luibel, Community Relations Manager, at 
(559) 386-9711 or visit www.KettlemanHillsFacts.com.

Benefits    WM contributes nearly $17.5  
million annually to the local 
economy through payroll and 
purchases of goods/services 
from local vendors.

   WM contributes almost $3 
million annually through 
disposal fees and taxes to the 
Kings County General Fund, 
most of which is allocated for  
public safety.

   In 2008, WM donated $85,000 
to local organizations, including 
scholarships to select graduating 
seniors at every high school in 
Kings County.







“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
William Siegel 

Mayor Pro Tem 
 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 

Lois Wynne 
Council Members 

John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
 

CALIFORNIA 
 

Fire  
Department 

 
210 Fox Street 

Lemoore  CA  93245 
Phone  (559) 924-6797 
FAX  (559) 924-9003 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM 4 
To: Lemoore City Council   

From: John Gibson, Fire Chief and 
Kristie R. Baley, Administrative Assistant 

Date: July 25, 2013  

Subject: Continuation – Public Hearing – Declaring Public Nuisances  
and Ordering Weed Abatement 

 

 
Discussion: 
 

It is recommended that a Public Hearing be continued to take testimony from citizens 
and to consider any and all objections to the removal of weeds, grasses, and other fire 
hazards on the properties shown in Exhibit “A” of Resolution No. 2013-24 approved July 
16, 2013. 
 
Budget Impact: 
 

Unknown at this time.  If the City has to contract for the removal of weeds, then the City 
initially bears the cost.  Those costs are later passed on to the property owners in the 
form of a lien against the property and billed with their next year’s property taxes. 
 
Recommendation: 
 

The Council continues the Public Hearing held July 16, 2013 to hear any objections 
from the public.  After the Public Hearing, it is recommended that the Council instruct 
staff to continue efforts on those properties not cleared by the owners. 
 
 
 
 









“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
William Siegel 

Mayor Pro Tem 
 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 

Lois Wynne 
Council Members 

John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
 

CALIFORNIA 
 

Public Works 
Department 

 
711 W. Cinnamon Drive 
Lemoore  CA  93245 

Phone  (559) 924-6735 
FAX  (559) 924-6708 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM 5 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Lauren Apone, Administrative Analyst 

Date: July 31, 2013  

Subject: Ordinance 2013-03 - Local Bidding Preference   

 
Discussion: 
 

At the previous two Council Meetings, Council discussed specifics they would like to 
see in a local bidding preference ordinance.  Staff has written an ordinance that 
addresses these items.  In summary, the following are the main points of the ordinance. 
 

 On bids for purchase and public works projects: 
o 5% flat preference for Local City Vendor if the low bid is $250,000 and 

under. 
o 5% matching preference for Local City Vendor if the low bid is over 

$250,000 
o 3% flat preference for Local 93245 Vendor if the low bid is $250,000 and 

under. 
o 3% matching preference for Local 93245 Vendor if the low bid is over 

$250,000 
 

 On solicitations for services: 
o 5% flat preference added to qualification score for Local City Vendor 
o 3% flat preference added to qualification score for Local 93245 Vendor 

 
The ordinance contains many other details to further clarify what constitutes each type 
of local vendor and the logistics for requesting the local bidding preference. 
 
Budget Impact: 
 

This ordinance has the potential to add an additional cost of 5% to any bid under 
$250,000, although the realistic costs of this ordinance are likely to be less. 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 

That Council discuss the local bidding preference ordinance and, if approved, that the 
City Council, by motion, waive the first reading of Ordinance No. 2013-03 and pass to a 
second reading.  



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2013-03 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMOORE 
REPLACING SECTION 10 TO CHAPTER 8 OF TITLE 1  

OF THE LEMOORE MUNICIPAL CODE 
RELATING TO LOCAL PREFERENCES  

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Lemoore desires to establish local 
preference for City purchases;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Lemoore does hereby ordain as 
follows: 
 
Section 10. Chapter 8, is hereby replaced in Title 1 of the Lemoore Municipal Code to 
read as follows: 
 

“Chapter 8” 
 

PURCHASES AND CONTRACTS 
 

Section 
 

1-8-10: LOCAL PREFERENCES: 
 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this chapter: 
 

A. Definitions 
“Local City Vendor” means a vendor, contractor, or consultant who has a valid physical 
business address located within the boundaries of the City of Lemoore, at least six 
months prior to bid or proposal opening date, from which the vendor, contractor, or 
consultant operates or performs business on a day-to-day basis, and holds a valid 
business license issued by the City of Lemoore.  Post office boxes are not verifiable and 
shall not be used for the purpose of establishing such physical address. 
 
“Local 93245 Vendor” means a vendor, contractor, or consultant who has a valid 
physical business address located outside the City of Lemoore but within the 93245 zip 
code, at least six months prior to bid or proposal opening date, from which the vendor, 
contractor, or consultant operates or performs business on a day-to-day basis, and 
holds a valid business license issued by the City of Lemoore.  Post office boxes are not 
verifiable and shall not be used for the purpose of establishing such physical address. 
 
“Local Vendor” includes a Local City Vendor and/or a Local 93245 Vendor. 
 
“Solicitation” means the City’s process to obtain bids, quotes, or proposals for the 
purchase of goods or services or public projects.  
 
 
 
 



 

 

B. Findings 
1.  Annually, the City of Lemoore spends a considerable amount purchasing 

maintenance services, public projects, and professional services. A substantial 
portion of the funds used to make these purchases come from taxes and fees 
derived from local businesses. 

2.  The City Council has determined that funds generated in the community should, 
to the extent possible, be placed back in the local economy. Retaining local 
dollars within a community reduces economic export, increases the financial 
productivity of taxpayer dollars and increases the consumption of local goods 
and services while fostering a sustainable community. 

3.  In working towards a sustainable economy, the City Council recognizes that 
sustainable procurement policies are an important early step on the City’s path to 
a sustainable community. Leveraging the purchasing power of the City to buy 
local products and services instead of products and services from outside the 
City, strengthens the local economic activity and employment as well as sets an 
example that helps foster and maintain a vital economic community for future 
generations. 

4. The City Council has determined that it is in the best interest of the City to give a 
preference to Local Vendors in making such purchases whenever the application 
of such a preference is reasonable in light of the dollar-value received in relation 
to such expenditure. 

5.  The City Council further finds that this action is necessary to encourage, 
promote, stimulate, preserve, and grow the local economy.  

 
C. Statement of policy 

1.  It is the policy of the City to promote employment and business opportunities for 
local residents and firms on all contracts and give preference to local residents, 
workers, businesses, vendors, contractors, and consultants to the extent 
consistent with the law and interest of the public. 

2.  Local Vendors must otherwise normally qualify to receive the bid pursuant to the 
City of Lemoore Municipal Code and other applicable law. 

3.  The provisions of this chapter shall be construed and implemented in accordance 
 with applicable federal and state laws.  

 
D. Local Vendor preference in services 

1. In the solicitation of contracts based on evaluation criteria which best serves the 
needs of the City and provides the City with the highest quality and cost 
effectiveness (such as services), as provided in this title, the City Council or the 
City Manager may give a preference pursuant to this chapter to Local Vendors in 
making such purchase or awarding such contract. 

2. The equivalent of a five percent preference will be added to the final evaluated 
score of each Local City Vendor. If the five percent preference causes the Local 
City Vendor to have the best overall score, the Local City Vendor may be 
deemed the vendor that best serves the needs of the City and provides the City 
with the highest quality and cost effectiveness.  

3. The equivalent of a three percent preference will be added to the final evaluated 
score of each Local 93245 Vendor. If the three percent preference causes the 
Local 93245 Vendor to have the best overall score, the Local 93245 Vendor may 



 

 

be deemed the vendor that best serves the needs of the City and provides the 
City with the highest quality and cost effectiveness.  

4. In order for a Local Vendor to be eligible to claim the preference, the Local 
Vendor must request the preference in the response to the solicitation and 
provide a copy of its current business license issued by the City. 

5. The vendor, contractor, or consultant will also, to the extent legally possible, 
solicit proposals for subcontractors and subcontractors for work associated with 
the proposed contract from local firms as opportunities occur and hire qualified 
local firms whenever feasible.  
 

E. Local Vendor preference in purchases and public works contracts 
1. Pursuant to the Public Contracts Code, public projects (i.e., public works 

construction) must be awarded to the lowest responsive, responsible bidder with 
certain exceptions. In the bidding of, or letting for procurement of goods and 
public projects, the City Council or the City Manager may give a preference 
pursuant to this chapter to Local Vendors in making such purchase or awarding 
such contract. 

2. If the vendor that submits the lowest responsive bid or quote is not a Local City 
Vendor as defined herein, the lowest responsive bid or quote submitted by a 
Local City Vendor that is within five percent (5%) of the lowest bid or quote may 
be deemed to be the lowest bidder. If the low bid for the project is $250,000 or 
under, the bid may be awarded to the local bidder outright.  However, if the low 
bid is over $250,000, said Local City Vendor may elect to reduce its bid or quote 
to match the bid or quote of the lowest bidder, in writing, within one business day 
(excluding weekends and holidays) of being notified of their status by the City. 

3. If the vendor that submits the lowest responsive bid or quote is not a Local 
Vendor as defined herein, the lowest responsive bid or quote submitted by a 
Local 93245 Vendor that is within three percent (3%) of the lowest bid or quote 
may be deemed to be the lowest bidder. If the low bid for the project is under 
$250,000, the bid may be awarded to the local bidder outright.  However, if the 
low bid is $250,000 or over, said Local 93245 Vendor may elect to reduce its bid 
or quote to match the bid or quote of the lowest bidder, in writing, within one 
business day (excluding weekends and holidays) of being notified of their status 
by the City.  For the purposes of matching, the total local bid will be reduced to 
the amount of the low bid, and each line item of the local bid will be reduced by 
the percentage difference between the low bid and the local bid. 

4. If the lowest Local Vendor within the indicated percent of the lowest bid or quote 
does not elect to reduce its bid or quote to match the bid or quote of the lowest 
bidder, then the next lowest Local Vendor shall be given the opportunity to match 
the bid or quote of the lowest bidder as set forth above, providing that this Local 
Vendor is also within five percent (5%) or three percent (3%), as applicable, of 
the lowest bid or quote that has been deemed responsive. 

5. In all of the above scenarios, local bidders within City limits are given priority over 
local bidders outside of City limits but inside the 93245 zip code. 

6. In order for a Local Vendor to be eligible to claim the preference, the Local 
Vendor must request the preference in the solicitation and provide a copy of its 
current business license issued by the City. 

7. The vendor, contractor, or consultant will also, to the extent legally possible, 
solicit proposals for subcontractors and subcontractors for work associated with 



 

 

the proposed contract from local firms as opportunities occur and hire qualified 
local firms whenever feasible.  
 

F. Exceptions to Local Vendor preference policy 
The local preference set forth in this chapter shall not apply to the following purchases 
or contracts: 

 
1. Supplies, equipment, and services provided under a cooperative purchasing 

agreement; 
2. Purchases or contracts which are funded in whole or in part by a governmental 

entity and the laws, regulations, or policies governing such funding prohibit 
application of a local preference; 

3. Purchases made or contracts let under emergency or noncompetitive situations; 
4. Application of the Local Vendor preference to a particular purchase, contract, or 

category of contracts for which the City Council is the awarding authority may be 
waived at the City Council’s discretion 
 

G. Quality and fitness 
The local preference set forth in this chapter shall in no way be construed to inhibit, limit 
or restrict the right and obligation of the City Council and the City Manager to compare 
quality and fitness for use of services proposed for purchase and compare the 
qualifications, character, responsibility, and fitness of all persons, firms, or corporations 
submitting bids or proposals. In addition, the preferences set forth in this chapter shall in 
no way be construed to prohibit the right of the City Council or the City Manager from 
giving any other preference permitted by law.  
 

H. Application 
The Local Vendor preference provided in this chapter shall apply to new contracts for 
services first solicited on or after October 1, 2013. This chapter shall be implemented in 
a manner consistent with otherwise applicable provisions of this title.  
 

I. Verification of Local Vendor preference eligibility 
Any vendor, contractor, or consultant claiming to be a Local Vendor shall so certify in 
the bid, in writing to the City Manager. The City Manager shall not be required to verify 
the accuracy or any such certifications, and shall have sole discretion to determine if a 
vendor, contractor, or consultant meets the definition of “Local Vendor.” The decision of 
the City Manager declaring that any person or business is not a Local Vendor shall be 
subject to appeal pursuant to the provisions of Section 1-5-3.  

 
J. Enforcement 

1. The information furnished by each bidder requesting a Local Vendor preference 
shall be submitted to the purchasing officer under penalty of perjury. 

2. No person or business shall knowingly or fraudulently obtain, retain, attempt to 
obtain or retain, or aid another in fraudulently obtaining or retaining or attempting 
to obtain or retain certification as a Local Vendor for the purpose of this chapter. 

3. No person or business shall willfully and knowingly make a false statement, 
whether by affidavit, report, or other representation, to a City official or employee 
for the purpose of influencing the certification or denial of certification of any 
entity as a Local Vendor. 



 

 

4. A business which has obtained City certification as a Local Vendor by reason of 
having furnished incorrect supporting information or by reason of having withheld 
information, and which knew or should have known, the information furnished 
was incorrect or the information withheld was relevant to its request for 
certification, and which by reason of such certification has been awarded a 
contract to which it would not otherwise have been entitled, shall: 

A. Pay the City any difference within the contract amount and what the City’s 
costs would have been if the contract had been properly awarded; 

B. Be ineligible to transact any business with the City for a period of not less 
than three (3) months and not more than twenty-four (24) months as 
determined in the sole discretion of the City Manager. The City Manager 
shall also have the right to terminate all or any part of any contract entered 
into with such person or business. 

5. The penalties identified in subsection 4 shall also apply to any business that has 
previously obtained proper certification and, as a result of a change in its status 
would no longer be eligible for certification, fails to notify the City of this 
information prior to responding to a solicitation or accepting a contract award.  

 
 
The foregoing Ordinance was introduced at a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the 
City of Lemoore held on the 6th  day of August, 2013 and was passed and adopted at 
the Regular Meeting of the City Council held on the 20th day of August, 2013 by the 
following vote:

  
AYES:   
NOES:   
ABSENT:   
ABSTAIN:   
 
       ___________/s/________________ 
       William Siegel, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________/s/_______________ 
Kristie Baley 
City Clerk 
 
 
J:\wdocs\01943\001\ord\00292529.DOC 



 

 

CERTIFICATE 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA   ) 
COUNTY OF KINGS )  SS 
CITY OF LEMOORE ) 
 
I, KRISTIE BALEY, City Clerk of the City of Lemoore do hereby certify the forgoing 
Ordinance was introduced at a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Lemoore held on the 6th  day of August, 2013 and was passed and adopted at a 
Regular Meeting of the City Council held on the 20th day of August, 2013. 
 
Date:  August 20, 2013 
  
       ________/s/________________ 
       Kristie Baley 
       City Clerk 



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
William Siegel 

Mayor Pro Tem 
 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 

Lois Wynne 
Council Members 

John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
 

CALIFORNIA 
 

Office of the  
City Manager 

 
119 Fox Street 

Lemoore  CA  93245 
Phone  (559) 924-6700 
FAX  (559) 924-9003 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM 6 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: JP Prichard, Administrative Analyst 

Date: July 31, 2013  

Subject: Request to Modify Area Impact Fee Designation – Montrio Capital 
Partners  

 

 
Discussion: 
 

Resolution 2011-10, which set the current rate of development impact fees for the City 
(outside of special consideration given to in-fill project), states that: 
 

“Any person subject to a fee required by this Resolution may apply to the City 
Council for a reduction, adjustment, or waiver of that fee based on the absence 
of a reasonable relationship between the impact of that person’s commercial, 
industrial, or residential development project on demands on infrastructure 
types in the City of Lemoore” 

 
Montrio Capital Partners has a Multi-Family Residential development project located 
between State Highway 41 and 19 ½ Avenue, immediately north of the railroad tracks 
running through the City.  Attached for Council review is a letter from the developer 
requesting a fee reduction on various grounds.  
 

Originally, this area was planned to be zoned Highway Commercial.  Consequently, it 
maintained a stronger nexus with West Side properties immediately surrounding the 
Highway 41/Bush Street Interchange.  However, a case can be made that, as a Multi-
Family Residential project, it bears a stronger nexus with the infrastructure needs of 
East Side development.  Therefore, it would not be inappropriate to consider charging 
Montrio Capital Partners the East Side Development Impact Fees instead.    
 

The second request made by Montrio Partners is to waive the Community Recreation 
Facility Fee.  While the developers will be providing a number of amenities for their 
residents, they will not have the same variety that the City provides, nor are they likely 
to be open to non-residents.  Therefore, it is suggested that this fee be charged for this 
development. 
 
Budget Impact: 
 

Should the Council agree to allow the use of East Side Fees instead of West Side Fees, 
the City will collect approximately $321,000 less revenue from development impact 
fees.  However, it is assumed that there would be a corresponding reduction in the need 
for City infrastructure from the project. 



“In God We Trust” 

 
Waiving the Community Recreation Facility Fee will result in a $124,000 less revenue 
without a corresponding reduction in infrastructure needs.   
 
Recommendation: 
 

Staff recommends that the Council allow for the project to be considered an East Side 
development for purposes of determining its development impact fees.  Staff further 
recommends that Council not waive the Community Recreation Facility Fee. 
 
 
 
 









“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
William Siegel 

Mayor Pro Tem 
 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 

Lois Wynne 
Council Members 

John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
 

CALIFORNIA 
 

Finance Department 
 

119 Fox Street 
Lemoore  CA  93245 

Phone  (559) 924-6700 
FAX  (559) 924-9003 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM 7 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Cheryl Silva, Finance Director 

Date: August 1, 2013  

Subject: Golf Course Debt Financing  

 
Discussion: 
 

Since the Golf Course expanded from nine to eighteen holes more than twenty-one 
years ago, the City has had to supplement the direct expenditures and debt service 
payments in a majority of the years.  In 2005, the Redevelopment Agency bought the 
notes receivable that had accrued on this augmentation from the City General Fund and 
has a repayment plan from the Golf Course to begin payments in the 2020/2021 fiscal 
year.  With the dissolution of the Redevelopment Agency in February 2012, future 
advances from the Redevelopment Agency to augment the Golf Course debt payments 
are no longer available. 
 

The City General Fund will have to augment the Golf Course debt payments until the 
1995 Bonds are paid off in November 2020.  The existing debt schedule has 
accelerated principal payments each year, making it difficult for the Golf Course to meet 
the required payments.  Staff has reviewed various options available to the City to 
refinance the 1995 Bonds.  The City General Fund has an estimated Fund Balance for 
6-30-14 of $6.9 million.  A majority of the cash is invested in the Local Agency 
Investment Fund (LAIF) and averaged less than .5% over the last four years.  The City 
could loan the Golf Course the funds at an interest rate of LAIF plus 1%.  This would 
increase the interest earnings the City is currently earning. 
 

The base scenario is if the City takes no action at this time and continues to pay with 
the existing bond repayment schedule.  The estimated expenses for the eight remaining 
years total $2,488,511.  The amounts due each year will increase due to the 
accelerated principal payments. 
 

Alternative #1 proposes for the General Fund to loan the Golf Course an estimated 
$1,440,000 to pay off the 1995 Bonds and other expenses associated with the 
transaction.  The estimated expenses for the eight remaining years total $1,529,026. 
 

Alternative #2 proposes for the General Fund to loan the Golf Course an estimated 
$1,412,260.  The City would make a mandatory call of the Golf Course Bonds, have the 
bond documents amended to eliminate the reserve requirement, letter of credit 
requirement and revise the amortization schedule and then purchase the bonds with the 
loan proceeds.  The estimated expenses for the eight remaining years total $1,701,697. 



“In God We Trust” 

Alternative #3 proposes for the General Fund to loan the Golf Course an estimated 
$1,568,260.  The existing bonds would stay in effect, but the loan proceeds would be 
used to fund the necessary reserves to avoid the letter of credit that is required on the 
bonds.  The estimated expenses for the eight remaining years total $1,885,627. 
 

Based on evaluation of the above proposals, it appears that Alternate #1 to pay off the 
1995 Golf Course Bonds would be the best option for the General Fund and the Golf 
Course.  The Golf Course operations should be able to pay the $191,128 annual 
payment to the General Fund.  The Golf Course has contributed an average of 
$189,400 towards the debt payment over the last nine years.  It would save all 
administrative expenses since the Finance Department staff would be administering the 
loan between the two funds. 
 
Budget Impact: 
 

The Golf Course could save $959,485 in expenses and the General Fund earn 1% 
additional revenue on the loan value over the next eight years. 
 
Recommendation: 
 

That the City Council, by motion, approve Alternative #1 for the General Fund to loan 
the Golf Course sufficient funds to pay off the 1995 Golf Course Bonds and related 
expenses as soon as possible and approve the repayment plan of the Golf Course to 
the General Fund over the next eight years. 
 



1995 GOLF COURSE DEBT

2,488,511 302,400 116,111 2,070,000 

2020-2021 339,300 19,300 15,000 305,000 11/1/2020

2019-2020 330,100 25,100 15,000 290,000 11/1/2019

2018-2019 320,600 30,600 15,000 275,000 11/1/2018

2017-2018 315,900 35,900 15,000 265,000 11/1/2017

2016-2017 305,900 40,900 15,000 250,000 11/1/2016

2015-2016 300,700 45,700 15,000 240,000 11/1/2015

2014-2015 295,300 50,300 15,000 230,000 11/1/2014

2013-2014280,711 54,600 11,111 215,000 11/1/2013

Fiscal YearExpensesExpensesExpensePrincipal DueBase Scenario

Total EstAdminInterest 



CALCULATIONS USED
IN DEBT OPTIONS

$       54,600 2013-2014 Estimated  Fees/expenses associated w/Debt

1,800 Admin FeesUnion Bank 

Fund 073 (Trustee Activity Associated with Debt)

52,800 

3,800 Admin Fees US Bank

2,000 Analytical Services Standard & Poors

3,000 Remarketing Fees RBC Capital

1,000 Draw FeesUnion Bank

43,000 Letter of CreditUnion Bank

Fund 045 Fees associated with Debt Issue



PAY GOLF COURSE BONDS IN 
FULL ALTERNATIVE #1

1,529,026 -89,026 1,440,000 

2020-2021 191,128 -1,544 189,584 11/1/2020

2019-2020 191,128 -4,365 186,764 11/1/2019

2018-2019 191,128 -7,144 183,985 11/1/2018

2017-2018 191,128 -9,881 181,247 11/1/2017

2016-2017 191,128 -12,578 178,551 11/1/2016

2015-2016 191,128 -15,234 175,894 11/1/2015

2014-2015 191,128 -17,851 173,277 11/1/2014

2013-2014191,128 -20,430 170,699 11/1/2013

Fiscal YearExpensesExpensesExpensePrincipal Due

Total EstAdminInterest 



PAY GOLF COURSE BONDS IN 
FULL ALTERNATIVE #1

$    1,440,000 Loan from General Fund to Pay Off Bonds

$     (657,740)Less:  Reserve Balance 6-30-13

$    2,097,740 Sub-Total of Debt/2013-2014 Expenses

$          3,929 Misc Expenses for Contingencies

$          3,000 Remarketing Fee

$             500 Union Bank Draw Fee

$          3,800 US Bank Admin Fee

$             900 Union Bank Admin Fee

$        12,000 Estimated Letter of Credit Fees

$          2,000 Estimated Interest Pymt 2nd Quarter

$          1,611 Interest Payment 1st Quarter 

$    2,070,000 Outstanding Balance

Primary Debt

Alternative #1



MANDATORY CALL OF GOLF 
COURSE BONDS 
ALTERNATIVE #2

1,701,697 200,411 89,026 1,412,260 

2020-2021 210,076 22,600 1,544 185,932 11/1/2020

2019-2020 210,131 22,600 4,365 183,166 11/1/2019

2018-2019 210,184 22,600 7,144 180,441 11/1/2018

2017-2018 210,237 22,600 9,881 177,756 11/1/2017

2016-2017 210,289 22,600 12,578 175,111 11/1/2016

2015-2016 210,340 22,600 15,234 172,506 11/1/2015

2014-2015 210,390 22,600 17,851 169,939 11/1/2014

2013-2014230,051 42,211 20,430 167,410 11/1/2013

Fiscal Year
Total Est
Expenses

Admin/Int
Expenses

Interest 
ExpensePrincipal Due

Alternative #2



MANDATORY CALL OF BONDS 
ALTERNATIVE #2

22,600 $        42,211 Sub-Total of Debt/2013-2014 Expenses

2,000 $        10,000 Misc Expenses for Contingencies

-$          3,000 Remarketing Fee

-$             500 Union Bank Draw Fee

3,800 $          3,800 US Bank Admin Fee

1,800 $          1,800 Union Bank Admin Fee

-$        12,000 Estimated Letter of Credit Fees

3,750 $          3,750 Estimated Interest Pymt 4th Quarter

3,750 $          3,750 Estimated Interest Pymt 3rd Quarter

3,750 $          2,000 Estimated Interest Pymt 2nd Quarter

3,750 $          1,611 Interest Payment 1st Quarter 

SubsequentFY 13-14 

Annual Bond Fees

$    1,412,260 Loan from General Fund to Golf Course

$     (657,740)Less:  Reserve Balance 6-30-13

$    2,070,000 Outstanding Balance

Primary Debt



CITY TO PROVIDE FUNDS TO 
AVOID LETTER OF CREDIT

ALTERNATIVE #3

1,885,627 220,411 96,956 1,568,260 

2020-2021 234,752 26,600 1,681 206,471 11/1/2020

2019-2020 234,752 26,600 4,753 203,399 11/1/2019

2018-2019 234,752 26,600 7,780 200,372 11/1/2018

2017-2018 234,752 26,600 10,761 197,391 11/1/2017

2016-2017 234,752 26,600 13,698 194,454 11/1/2016

2015-2016 234,752 26,600 16,591 191,561 11/1/2015

2014-2015 234,752 26,600 19,441 188,710 11/1/2014

2013-2014242,363 34,211 22,249 185,903 11/1/2013

Fiscal Year
Total Est
Expenses

Admin/Int
Expenses

Interest 
ExpensePrincipal Due

Alternative #3



FUNDS TO AVOID LETTER OF 
CREDIT / ALTERNATIVE #3

26,600 $        34,211 Sub-Total of Debt/2013-2014 Expenses

2,000 $          2,000 Misc Expenses for Contingencies

3,000 $          3,000 Remarketing Fee

1,000 $             500 Union Bank Draw Fee

3,800 $          3,800 US Bank Admin Fee

1,800 $          1,800 Union Bank Admin Fee

-$        12,000 Estimated Letter of Credit Fees

3,750 $          3,750 Estimated Interest Pymt 4th Quarter

3,750 $          3,750 Estimated Interest Pymt 3rd Quarter

3,750 $          2,000 Estimated Interest Pymt 2nd Quarter

3,750 $          1,611 Interest Payment 1st Quarter 

SubsequentFY 13-14 

Annual Bond Fees

$    1,568,260 Balance of Bonds to fund

$     (657,740)Less:  Reserve Balance 6-30-13

2,226,000 120% Funding Requirement

$    1,855,000 

(215,000.00)November 1, 2013 Principal Payment

$    2,070,000 Outstanding Balance

Primary Debt



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
William Siegel 

Mayor Pro Tem 
 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 

Lois Wynne 
Council Members 

John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
 

CALIFORNIA 
 

Office of the  
City Manager 

 
119 Fox Street 

Lemoore  CA  93245 
Phone  (559) 924-6700 
FAX  (559) 924-9003 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM 8 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Jeff Laws, Acting City Manager 

Date: July 23, 2013  

Subject: Installation of Concealed Carry Signs  

 
Discussion: 
 

Council Member Rodarmel has requested that the Council consider installing concealed 
carry signs at all entrances to City Hall.  There are five public entrances at City Hall 
(including Council Chambers and the Civic).  The attached sign is an example of such a 
sign.  The signs range in price from $15 to $60 depending on the size and material.    
 
Council should consider whether or not they would like to encourage the carrying of 
concealed weapons on City property.   
 
Budget Impact: 
 

The General Fund would be impacted by the cost of the signs and installation. 
 
Recommendation: 
 

None – Council Discretion. 
 
 
 
 



 



“In God We Trust” 
 

Mayor 
William Siegel  

      City of 

LEMOORE 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Lois Wynne 

Council Members 
John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
CALIFORNIA 

Office of the 
City Clerk 

 
119 Fox Street 

Lemoore CA  93245 
Phone(559) 924-6700 
FAX(559) 924-9003 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM NO. 9 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Kristie R. Baley, City Clerk 

Date: August 2, 2013  

Subject: Downtown Merchants Advisory Committee – Appointment 
 

 
Discussion 
 

The Downtown Merchants Advisory Committee (DMA) advises Council on expenditures 
of the Parking and Business Improvement Area (PBIA) Fund.  Section 3-2-5 of the 
Lemoore Municipal Code, states that an Advisory Committee consisting of nine (9) 
Members shall be appointed by the Mayor with the concurrence of the City Council for a 
term of one year, to serve at the pleasure of the Mayor and City Council, and that said 
Members are to be persons who own or are employed in businesses within the PBIA.  
Additionally, in March 2008, Council approved Resolution 2008-08 stating that the 
Committee shall consist of a minimum of five (5) Board Members and a quorum shall be 
a majority of Board Members actually on the Committee as recognized by the Mayor.   
 
The resignation of Michael Daniel left the Committee with only four (4) Board Members 
remaining.  The Downtown Merchants Coordinator and Members of the Board diligently 
began recruitment efforts and Danielle Bellwood, owner of The Cakery, a new 
Downtown business, has come forward to fulfill one of the vacant seats.  Her application 
is attached.  Should she be appointed, the term will expire October 31, 2013.   
 
Budget Impact 
 

None.   
 
Recommendation 
 

The Mayor, with the consensus of at least two Council Members, should appoint 
Danielle Bellwood to serve the remainder of the vacant term on the Downtown 
Merchants Advisory Committee and that recruitment efforts are to continue until all 
vacant positions, if any, are filled.   







kbaley
Typewritten Text

kbaley
Typewritten Text

kbaley
Typewritten Text
Item 10



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
William Siegel 

Mayor Pro Tem 
 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 

Lois Wynne 
Council Members 

John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
 

CALIFORNIA 
 

Office of the 
City Manager 

 
119 Fox Street 

Lemoore  CA  93245 
Phone  (559) 924-6704 
FAX  (559) 924-9003 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM 11 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Judy Holwell, Project Manager 

Date: July 31, 2013  

Subject: Gary V. Burrows, Inc. – Loan Subordination  

 
Discussion: 
 

Attached is a letter dated July 17, 2013, from Richard C. Conway, Esq. of Kahn, Soares 
& Conway, LLP on behalf of his client Gary V. Burrows, Inc. (Burrows) requesting 
subordination of the Deed of Trust currently encumbering the property located at 1600 
Enterprise Drive in Lemoore.  Burrows desires to obtain a line of credit against the 
property for up to $1,000,000.  
 

On May 3, 2011, the Lemoore Redevelopment Agency (RDA) Board approved a 
forgivable loan to Burrows in the amount of $1.2 million to purchase the property 
vacated by Western RV.  The investment was and continues to be good for the 
community because the business has grown substantially; providing additional local 
jobs and sales tax revenue.  To protect the RDA’s interest, the loan was amortized over 
a 25 year period at an interest rate of 5.85% per year (Agreement with Loan 
Amortization Schedule attached), during which time Burrows agreed to report 90 
percent of his sales tax to Lemoore.   
 

At the time Burrows negotiated the purchase of the property, information was provided 
to us listing the value of the property when Western RV possessed it at $2,575,077 
(undated document from Zengel & Associates attached).  It is likely that this property 
continues to hold the same value.   
 

Because the loan agreement is with the RDA, the Lemoore Oversight Board will need to 
approve its subordination.  Additionally, actions of the Oversight Board are not final until 
they are approved by the State of California Department of Finance.  Council, acting as 
the Successor Agency to the former Lemoore Redevelopment Agency, should 
recommend that this item be presented to the Oversight Board for approval. 

 
Budget Impact: 
 

None. 
 
Recommendation: 
 

It is recommended that Council direct staff to present the request to subordinate on 
Burrows $1,200,000 loan to the Oversight Board for approval as outlined above.   













































 1

            LHA ITEM 15_ 
 

 
Minutes of the Meeting of the 

LEMOORE HOUSING AUTHORITY 
July 2, 2013 

 
ATTENDANCE: 

Commission Chairman Siegel; Commissioners Gordon, Neal, Rodarmel and 
Wynne; Executive Director Laws; Commission Counsel Avedisian; Public 
Works/Planning Director Wlaschin; Parks and Recreation Director Simonson; 
Finance Director Silva; Project Manager Holwell; Administrative Analyst   
Prichard; Executive Secretary/Housing Specialist Austin; City Clerk Baley. 

 
MEETING CALLED TO ORDER: 

At 8:28 p.m., the Council adjourned to Lemoore Housing Authority Meeting.  
 
APPROVAL - MINUTES LEMOORE HOUSING AUTHORITY – May 1, 2013: 

It was moved by Commissioner Gordon, seconded by Commissioner          
Rodarmel, and carried that the Commission approve the Lemoore Housing         
Authority Minutes of May 1, 2013. 
 
Ayes:  Gordon, Rodarmel, Neal, Wynne, Siegel    

 
REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION – FUNDS AVAILABLE: 

Housing Specialist Austin presented information concerning funds available, 
use of funds and the timeline in which funds become available. 
 
The Commission directed staff to use available funds to continue those  
programs that were already in place prior to the dissolution of Redevelopment. 

 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 At 8:44 p.m. the meeting adjourned.         
 
Full digital audio recording is available. 
 
Approved the 6th day of August, 2013. 
 
 
        ____________________________ 
        William M. Siegel, Jr., Chairman 
 
Attest: 
 

__________________________ 
Jeff Laws, Secretary 



“In God We Trust” 

Chairman 
William Siegel  

                    City of 

LEMOORE 

Commissioners 
Lois Wynne 
John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel CALIFORNIA 

Housing Authority 
 

 
 

119 Fox Street 
Lemoore  CA  93245 

Phone(559)  924-6701 
  FAX(559)  924-9003 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM 16 
To: Lemoore Housing Authority Commission  

From: Brooke Austin, Housing Specialist  

Date: July 30, 2013  

Subject: 2013-2014 Lemoore Housing Authority Budget  

 
Discussion: 
 

As you may recall, last month the Commission discussed the availability of funds on 
hand with the Lemoore Housing Authority to provide low-moderate income housing 
programs and projects.  That report can be accessed at the following link 
http://www.lemoore.com/agendas/2013/jul2/data/7_2_13_item_11_1.pdf and the 
attachment at http://www.lemoore.com/agendas/2013/jul2/data/7_2_13_item_11_2.pdf. 
The funds available consist of $1,250,000 in bond proceeds and $53,307.34 in loan 
payments and rents, for a total of $1,303,307.34.   
 

The Commission directed staff to allocate funds to programs similar to those offered by 
the former Lemoore Redevelopment Agency.  Therefore, the attached Budget for Fiscal 
Year 2013-2014 has been prepared.  Funding is proposed for the following programs:  
Lemoore Transitional Housing (Meyer Ranch Home), Emergency Home Repair, First-
Time Homebuyer, Exterior Home Improvement (Paint-Up/Fix-Up), Do-It-Yourself House 
Painting, and Multi-Family Rehabilitation.   
 

In addition, the Cooperation Agreement between the City and Housing Authority 
includes the payment of administrative and overhead costs to carry out the programs 
and projects.  The administrative and overhead costs were based on the amount 
previously allocated to RDA – Low/Moderate Income Housing in the City’s Cost 
Allocation Plan.  This amount is based on the costs associated with the City Council, 
City Manager’s Department, Finance Department and Planning Department that were 
used in the performance of housing functions of the former Agency.  It was anticipated 
that the current staff would continue to perform similar housing activities; therefore, 
these costs were considered appropriate.  The amount for administration and overhead 
costs has been included in the Budget. 
 

In order to use the housing bond proceeds, Health and Safety Code Section 
34176(g)(1)(B) requires the Housing Authority to provide notice to the Successor 
Agency to include such use on the Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS).  
Such notice must be given at least 20 days prior to the deadline for submission of the 
ROPS.  The next ROPS, ROPS 13-14B, is due October 1, 2013.  The deadline to notify 
the Successor Agency of the Housing Authority’s intent to use bond proceeds is 
September 10th.  The ROPS will then have to be submitted to the Department of 
Finance for approval.  Once approved, the use of bond proceeds can begin January 1, 
2014.   



“In God We Trust” 

 
Budget Impact: 
 

The 2013-2014 proposed budget includes available funds in the amount of 
$1,303,307.34 and authorizes expenditures in the amount of $945,352.  Any unused 
funds will be carried over to the next fiscal year. 
 
Recommendation: 
 

That the Commission, by motion, approve Resolution 2013-01 adopting the proposed 
2013-2014 Lemoore Housing Authority Budget and direct the Executive Director to 
notify the Successor Agency of its intent to use bond proceeds. 



RESOLUTION NO. 2013-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE LEMOORE HOUSING AUTHORITY 
APPROVING THE FISCAL YEAR 2013-2014 BUDGET  

 
 
 At a Regular Meeting of the Lemoore Housing Authority Commission duly 

called and held on August 6, 2013 at 7:30 p.m. on said day, it was moved by 

Commissioner _________________, seconded by Commissioner ______________ 

and carried that the following Resolution be adopted: 

 WHEREAS, the Executive Director of the Lemoore Housing Authority has 

presented to the Commission a proposed budget for the Fiscal Year beginning July 

1, 2013 and ending June 30, 2014; and 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Budget of the Lemoore 

Housing Authority for Fiscal Year 2013-2014 is hereby approved.  

 
 Passed and adopted at a Regular Meeting of the Lemoore Housing Authority 

Commission held on the 6th day of August, 2013 by the following vote: 

 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAINING: 
       APPROVED: 

 
 
       ___________________________ 

       William M. Siegel Jr., Chairman 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Jeff Laws, Secretary 



07/01/13 - 06/30/14

Administration
City Council 5,874$                       
City Manager's Department 128,053$                   
Finance Department 31,997$                     
Planning Department 9,429$                       

Total 175,352$                   

Lemoore Housing Authority
2013-2014 Budget



07/01/13 - 06/30/14
Assets
Cash 1,303,307$              
Notes Receivable 6,835,769$              
Accrued Interest Receivable 527$                        
Land Held for Resale 1,485,564$              

Total 9,625,167$              

Funds Available for Use* 1,303,307$              

Expenses
Lemoore Transitional Housing Program 5,000$                     
Emergency Home Repair Program 10,000$                   
First-Time Homebuyer Grant Program 400,000$                 
Exterior Home Improvement Program 150,000$                 
Do-It-Yourself House Painting Program 5,000$                     
Multi-Family Rehabilitation Program 200,000$                 
Housing Administration Costs** 175,352$                 

Total 945,352$                 

*$1,250,000 in Bond Funds must go on ROPS for 1/1/14 - 6/30/14

**per Cost Allocation Plan

Lemoore Housing Authority
2013-2014 Budget


